
NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 
January 26, 2024, 9:30am 
NACO Conference Room 
304 S. Minnesota Street 
Carson City, NV 89703 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the 
following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, 
your public comment must include your full name and be submitted via email by not later than 3:00 
p.m. the day before the meeting.

The public may also join the meeting via telephone and provide verbal public comment during designated times 
by calling: (669) 900-9128 Meeting ID: 832 8946 6638 Passcode: 921863 

AGENDA 
NACO Board members may attend via remote technology from other locations. Items on the agenda 
may be taken out of order. The NACO Board may combine two or more agenda items for 
consideration. The NACO Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to 
an item on the agenda at any time.  

Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Public Comment. Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes.

2. Approval of Agenda. For Possible Action

3. Discussion and Possible Approval Regarding Appointment to Fill the Vacancy of the Office of
NACO Vice-President. For Possible Action

4. Investiture of the 2024 NACO Officers.

5. NACO President’s Report.

6. NACO Executive Director’s Report.

7. Approval of Minutes of the December 15, 2023, NACO Board of Directors Meeting. For
Possible Action

8. Final Approval of NACO’s 2024 Federal Priorities. For Possible Action

9. Approval of NACO’s Investment Reports for October, November, and December of 2023. For
Possible Action

10. Approval of NACO’s Financial Statements for October, November, and December of 2023.
For Possible Action

mailto:info@nvnaco.org


11. Discussion and Possible Approval Regarding the Re-Appointment of Ross Miller, Clark
County Commissioner, to the Nevada Commission on Nuclear Projects. For Possible Action

12. Discussion and Possible Approval Regarding the Re-Appointment of Shayla Holmes, Lyon
County Human Services Director, and Public Guardian, to the Health and Human Services
Grant Management Advisory Committee.  For Possible Action

13. Discussion and Possible Approval to Submit a List of Three (3) Recommendations for
Appointment of One (1), by the Office of the Governor, to the Commission to Review the
Compensation of Constitutional Officers, Legislators, Supreme Court Justices, Judges of the
Court of Appeals, District Judges and Elected County Officers, For Possible Action

14. Discussion on Proposed NACO Board Meetings Dates for May and June 2024. For Possible
Action

15. Review and Possible Approval of the NACO 2024 County Directory. For Possible Action

16. Overview and Update on Senate Bill (SB) 118 and a Presentation on Funding Allocation and
Allowable Uses.

17. Authorize the Purchase of a Replacement NACO Vehicle.  For Possible Action

18. Review and Approval of an Office Policy Regarding the Maintaining of Receipts, or Proof of
Purchase, Relating to NACO Related Business and Authorized Purchases. For Possible
Action

19. Update and Possible Action. Regarding Public Lands and Natural Resources Issues
Affecting Counties Including:

a. Updates from the NACO Public Lands and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

20. Updates from Members of the National Association of Counties Board, Western Interstate
Region Board, and Individual Counties.

21. Public Comment. Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes.

Adjournment. 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify NACO in writing at 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703, 
or by calling (775) 883-7863 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 

Members of the public can request copies of the supporting material for the meeting by contacting 
Amanda Berg at (775) 883-7863. Supporting material will be available at the NACO office and on 
the NACO website at: www.nvnaco.org 

This agenda was posted at the following locations: 
NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703 
Washoe County Admin. Building 1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, NV 89520 
Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801 
POOL/PACT 201 S. Roop Street, Carson City, NV 89701 
NACO Website: www.nvnaco.org  

http://www.nvnaco.org/


Vinson and fellow commissioners, 

As a newly elected commissioner in 2021 I requested by the Douglas County Board of Commissioners to 
be assigned as our representative to the board of directors of the Nevada Association of Counties and 
was appointed in that role. 

Upon taking on that role I have remained engaged with the organization over the last three years. In 
addition I’ve taken the opportunity to become engaged with the National Association of Counties 
attending both their legislative conferences in February and their annual convention in July and also 
taken on a role with the national organization with the Agriculture and Rural Counties Steering 
Committee. I am a strong advocate on insuring all 17 counties have a voice on our NACO board. 

As we, the Nevada Association of Counties, have encountered a vacancy what I understand will be the 
role of Vice President with commissioner Delmo Andreozzi taking on the role of President Elect I would 
ask for your consideration of my name to fulfill the role of Vice President for the 2024 calendar year. 

I have chatted with our new BOCC chair Wes Rice and have his full support and endorsement to that 
endeavor should you so choose. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration, 

Regards, 

Mark Gardner 

Commissioner, District 3 

Douglas County Nevada 

Agenda Item 3



Leter of Interest 

NACO 

J Scott Keller 
Lyon County Commissioner 

August 31, 2023 

Nomina�ng Commitee, 

I would like to express my desire to be included for considera�on of the vice president posi�on on the NACO board of 
directors for the 2024 calendar year. Please note, if elected, I will be able to complete the du�es as NACO President 
during my current term as Lyon County Commissioner. 

There will be undoubtedly several leters of interest, and all very qualified for the posi�on. I however feel that my diverse 
experience is not only in poli�cs, by dealing with the private sector has given me an advantage of decision making by 
looking at any situa�on from different avenues. To include the unintended consequences for government and the 
ci�zens of Nevada inclusive.  

I have atached a brief Bio and please feel free to contact me with any ques�ons you might have. 

I would like to thank you in advance for your considera�on as I know this will be a tough decision. 

Kindly, 

J. Scot Keller

(775) 691-0171

Keller@hsne50.com 



Brief bio 

J. Scott Keller
Lyon County Commissioner

Current associated boards; 

NACO Legisla�ve commitee 
NACO public lands commitee 
NACO AgRA steering commitee 
NACO General Board (Alternate) 
Intergovernmental Execu�ve Commitee (Fallon Range) 
NNDA (Northern Nevada Development Associa�on) 
NAP (Na�onal Associa�on of parliamentarians) Cer�fied Parliamentarian 
Silver Springs Mutual Water Company, 12 years and past president 

Previous boards and associa�ons; 

Silver Springs Advisory Board, 15 years as chairman 
Central Lyon County Parks and Recrea�on board, 14 years (12 as chairman) 

Private sector; 

Owner and President of Keller Construc�on and Development, Inc. 
General contractor, Electrical contractor, and Manufactured Housing. 

Co-Owner and vice president of Priceless Realty inc. 

Personal informa�on; 

I was born and raised in Reno, Nevada. I have been married to my wife, Vida Keller, for 26 years. Vida Keller is the 
former Lyon County Commissioner and sat on the NACO execu�ve commitee. I have sat in on many NACO 
mee�ngs, NACO Annual Conferences and NACo Na�onal Conferences since 2011, which gives me history of the 
NACO organiza�on and the con�nued struggles that Nevada faces while compe�ng on the na�onal stage. 
Working in the real estate, construc�on and development field has broadened my experience in county building 
and planning. Being involved with the local u�lity company has given me insight into the infrastructure funding 
that is needed to assist us to provide services so our communi�es can grow. 
My dedica�on to our communi�es can be seen by the length of �me I have par�cipated on local boards. 
I am an avid hunter & fisherman who enjoys the great outdoors that Nevada has to offer along with knowing 
mining and agriculture is what built this state and keeps it going. Figh�ng for our public lands is cri�cal.  

I know this is a short bio for someone that has spent most of his life in Nevada, But I would love to have the opportunity 
to answer any ques�ons in areas that you would like me to expanded on. 

3115 Spring Circle 
P.O. Box 201 
Silver Springs, NV 89429 
(775) 691-0171



NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 
December 15, 2023, 9:30am 

NACO Conference Room 
304 S. Minnesota Street 
Carson City, NV 89703 

UNADOPTED MINTUES 

ATTENDANCE: President Higbee, President Elect Giomi, Past President Kirkpatrick, Douglas 
County Commissioner Gardner, Elko County Commissioner Andreozzi, Humboldt County 
Commissioner Tipton, Lincoln County Commissioner Reese, Lyon County Commissioner 
Henderson, Nye County Commissioner Boskovich, Storey County Commissioner Carmona, Washoe 
County Commissioner Herman, White Pine County Commissioner Carson, Fiscal Officer Kalt and 
NACO Staff (Vinson Guthreau, Jennifer Berthiaume, Jacob Brinkerhoff, Amy Hyne Sutherland, and 
Amanda Berg) 

The meeting was called to order at 9:33 a.m. 

1. Public Comment. None was given.

2. Approval of Agenda. The agenda was approved as presented on a motion by Commissioner
Gardner with second by Commissioner Andreozzi

3. NACO President’s Report. President Elect Giomi informed the Board that President Higbee
was attending a meeting of the National Wild Horse and Burro Advisory Board, and he
would join the meeting if he was able. He reminded the Board that the January meeting will
take place on the 26th, where the 2024 Officers would be invested and encouraged all those
able to attend in person. President Elect Giomi then discussed issues with a specific foam
material used to combat carbon-based fires and encouraged the Board to keep an eye on the
situation as the replacement retardant is not currently being produced in quantities to
make it widely available. He concluded his remarks by noting that there may be an
opportunity to go before the Interim Finance Committee for dollars to assist with hazardous
material disposal costs for stock of the current retardant.

4. NACO Executive Director’s Report. Vinson informed the Board that the National
Association of Counties (NACo) is also monitoring the situation with the material discussed
by President Elect Giomi and that he would gather and distribute materials from them
following a final decision by the Emergency Response Commission. He thanked the Board
for a successful year, noting that 2023 was a Legislative year that brings additional
challenges. He reminded the Board of the upcoming NACo Legislative Conference in
February directing the Boards attention to the link included in the agenda packet. He
informed the Board that materials for Nevada specific events during the conference
including meetings with the State’s Federal Representatives would be distributed to those
registered for the event. Vinson concluded his remarks by wishing the Board a happy
holiday season.

Agenda Item 7



5. Approval of Minutes of the November 18, 2022, NACO Board of Directors Meeting. The
minutes were approved as written on a motion by Commissioner Andreozzi with second by
Commissioner Herman.

6. Presentation and Discussion Regarding the Economic Recovery Transportation
Electrification Plan (ERTEP), Dustin Newsom, Senior Project Manager, Integrated
Energy Services, NV Energy. Government Relations Advisor, Chloe Chism thanked the
Board for the opportunity to present to the group and introduced Mr. Newsom. Mr. Newsom
then gave an overview of the program to expand electric vehicle charging locations across
the NV Energy service area. He explained what makes a site appropriate or ideal and how
SB448 provides funding to assist in alleviating the financial burden to public agencies. Mr.
Newsom discussed the differences between for profit charging sites and those designated as
community charging centers, giving an overview of the different ownership models
included within the ERTEP. Vinson requested examples of what a third party is vs. a Public
Agency, and it was clarified that shopping malls and other private industry locations would
fall under the 3rd party designation while facilities such as Community Centers, Senior
Centers and other similar locations owned by local governments would fall under the Public
Agency category. Commissioner Gardner inquired as to if there was the ability to mitigate
lost revenue to the counties from the reduction of fuel taxes and Mr. Newsom stated that
under the Customer Owned model there is the ability to allow for recoupment of costs by
setting charging fees, but that under the utility owned model there is no way to bridge that
gap. President Elect Giomi informed the Board that Carson City passed an ordinance to
address the issue with a set rate and that he would share that information. Mr. Newsom
clarified that the charging station must reside on publicly owned land to take advantage of
the ownership share model within the program. The Board also inquired as to issues with
capacity in rural areas and whether the program considered areas not served by NV Energy.
It was clarified that capacity investigations are conducted prior to identification of viable
site locations and that under the current legislation areas outside of NV Energy service are
not eligible for the program. Revenue loss was a continued discussion and President Elect
Giomi reminded the Board that NV Energy was not responsible for that issue. Following
additional review of the legislation, Jennifer clarified that NV Energy is the only utility that
can access the funding due to the language of the Bill. The item was concluded by
Commissioner Carmona who informed the Board that a town hall with NDOT that would be
taking place in Storey County was expected to include discussion on taxation of electric
vehicles to make up for lost revenue to both the State and the local taxing jurisdictions.

7. Approval of NACO Resolution 23-04 Recognizing January 2024 as National Radon
Action Month. President Elect Giomi read the resolution into the record, and it was
approved on a motion by Commissioner Andreozzi with second by Commissioner Gardner.

8. Preliminary Presentation and Discussion of NACO Federal Priorities for 2024. Jennifer
directed the Boards attention to the document included in the agenda packet. She reminded
the Board that it is a document produced annually and that the House of Representatives
would be in session during the upcoming NACo Legislative Conference. Jennifer then
outlined the changes and updates made to the priorities, noting that they were highlighted
within the document. She explained that no action was needed, but that staff is requesting
Board feedback and is welcome to questions or comments. President Elect Giomi concluded
the item by requesting that any comments, additions, or questions be communicated to staff



by January 15th so the document could be updated before the January Board meeting where 
the Board will take action to approve the Associations 2024 Federal Priorities. 

9. Annual Update from NACO Investment Advisor, Moreton Asset Management, LLC, Dan
Rusk, Portfolio Manager. Mr. Rusk began his presentation by discussing inflation, noting
that it has recently come down with prices rising less rapidly than earlier in the year. He
discussed recent decisions by the Federal Reserve to begin lowering interest rates which
are expected to be reduced three times in 2024, to begin in March with quarterly reductions
expected to total 1.5% as determined by market actuators. Mr. Rusk informed the Board
that the Association’s portfolio is currently experiencing a 4% yield with some unrealized
gains, noting that year-to-date the net income in the portfolio was approximately $20,000,
which was almost as much as the two prior years combined. He discussed current
investments in bonds which are locked with interest rates that will not be affected by the
expected cuts. Vinson informed the Board that the service given by Moreton is excellent and
reminded them that the annual update is included within the Association’s service
agreement. Fiscal Officer Kalt concluded the item by informing the Board that the current
investment mix is in compliance with the Board’s adopted policy and that no adjustments
were recommended by the Account Advisor.

10. Final Discussion and Approval of NACO 2024 Budget. Vinson reminded the Board that
the draft budget was brought before the Board in November for initial discussion and
review. He directed the Boards attention to the documents included in the agenda packet
and noted that per Commissioner Andreozzi’s request, a column for the 2023 approved
budget was added for comparison purposes. While no direct feedback was received from
Board members, Vinson discussed comments received from Fiscal Officer Kalt, including the
overview of additional cash management processes as previously directed by the Board,
which have resulted in an increased percentage yield for the Association. Commissioner
Andreozzi thanked Vinson for the additional comparison column and requested that it be
made a yearly practice moving forward. President Elect Giomi suggested making it three
running years going forward to echo more accurately what the counties include in their
own budget development processes. Vinson informed the Board that there was an error in
the motion verbiage included in the agenda packet and requested that the motion include
his suggested change of verbiage to include $763,238 in revenues with expenses totaling
$760,872. Fiscal Officer Kalt thanked staff for being good stewards of the Association’s
resources and President Elect Giomi added thanks to Mr. Kalt for volunteering his time and
expertise as the NACO Fiscal Officer. The 2024 NACO Budget was approved as suggested on
a motion by Commissioner Andreozzi with second by Commissioner Herman.

11. Updates from NACO Public Health Coordinator, Including Presentation and
Discussion of Year-End Summary of Activities. Amy directed the Board’s attention to the
document included in the agenda packet. She gave an overview of the work conducted on
behalf of all the counties, but reminded the Board that support is available for singular
issues within the counties. She reminded the Board that the NEAP assessments are ongoing
and will provide baseline data to the counties that will help support future public health
decisions. Amy discussed the support provided to the NACO Government Affairs staff during
the Legislative Session, reminding the Board that she is unable to testify due to the position
being grant funded. She concluded her remarks by thanking the Board for the opportunity
to provide service to the counties and that she looks forward to continuing to provide
support going forward. Commissioner Andreozzi inquired as to any work being done to
address the increase in suicides during and following the pandemic. Commissioner Gardner
noted that Douglas County is seeing an increase in those actions among their older



populations. Amy noted that increased suicide is a major issue among all demographics and 
that peer and telehealth support is available.  

12. Update and Possible Action. Regarding Public Lands and Natural Resources Issues
Affecting Counties Including:

a. Updates from the NACO Public Lands and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
Jacob reminded the Board that the Subcommittee had met the previous day, and
that discussion included the Climate Change Priority Action Plan being developed by
NDEP,  and that they had requested input from NACO, noting that if members shared
their thoughts on priorities with him, he would provide a collated list to the
Division. He informed the Board that discussions had also taken place on the BLM’s
inventory of lands with wilderness characteristics and that while a request had been
made for them to share that information, no decisions had been made or actions
taken at the time, but that the inventory would be included in future Resource
Management Plans. The Farm Bill was also discussed, and President Higbee had
encouraged a NACO resolution supporting the inclusion of woody biomass in farm
bill definitions, NACO had also signed on to  a letter requesting additional funding
for the Wild Horse and Burro program.

b. Presentation and discussion of the “Western Alliance Smart from the Start
Alternative” for BLM Solar PEIS. Jacob discussed work conducted on behalf of the
Association as a Cooperating Agency, noting that communication and close work
was done with the counties natural resource staff. He informed the Board that
comments were submitted that were slightly more restrictive than any of the BLM’s
published alternatives and directed the Board’s attention to the document included
in the agenda packet. He gave an overview of the document, including the specific
definition of disturbed lands and requested that the Board approve the comments
submitted as their official position. President Elect Giomi inquired as if the
submitted document left room for exploration and Jacob stated that there is enough
land available to meet the administration’s renewable energy goals by more than
double. Commissioner Andreozzi inquired about waste and abandonment and Jacob
noted that those items were addressed as well, however the specific item at hand
was only regarding citing of solar fields. He also informed the Board that he is
looking to provide a spring workshop on the issue of solar energy devellopment.
Commissioner Carson suggested that counties add language specific to Smart from
the Start within their updates to county land use plans, as White Pine County had
done. The submitted comments were ratified on a motion by Commissioner
Andreozzi with second by Commissioner Carson.

c. Presentation and Discussion of Year-End Summary of Activities from the NACO
Public Lands and Natural Resources Subcommittee. Jacob directed the Boards
attention to the documents included in the agenda packet and drew specific
attention to the comments submitted to various agencies on many issues affecting
counties. President Elect Giomi thanked Jacob for his work, noting that NACO is
looked to as an authority on natural resources issues because of the expertise of
both staff and Commissioners across the State.

13. Updates from Members of the National Association of Counties Board, Western
Interstate Region Board, and Individual Counties. Past President Kirkpatrick reflected
on issues with the housing committee and President Higbee discussed the upcoming ARPA
ruling from Treasury and continued work on the Farm Bill. Commissioner Tipton informed
the Board that the WIR meeting for December had been canceled. Commissioners also gave
updates on activities within their respective counties.



14. Public Comment. Holly Gatske from the University of Nevada Reno, thanked the Board for
their support of Radon Action Month, noting that testing kits would be available at
Extension offices across the state and that information on mitigation is also available. Ms.
Gatske also informed the Board that research is being conducted by the University on
components of photovoltaic agriculture to address impacts from solar fields.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:21 a.m. 



Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 1 

Nevada Association of Counties (NACO) Federal Priorities 

Public Health & Community Resiliency  

Nevada’s counties continue to provide the local social safety net and the many community 
services that Nevadans depend on, while supporting our communities as they focus on growing 
the economy and supporting our citizens on a pathway to resiliency.  

Continued Support for Public Health: While unprecedented federal funding and aid to 
counties has occurred in recent years, it has served to highlight the need for additional long-
term support for our country’s public health system.  In Nevada, public health is provided 
through a partnership between health districts, counties, and the State.  During Nevada’s 
response to a historic public health emergency, we saw that the lack of sustained resources 
for health districts, emergency responders and county hospitals complicated those efforts.  
As a result, in partnership with the State, Nevada’s counties will focus on working with the 
federal delegation to support increased funding for public health so that we can be better 
prepared for any future public health crisis. This includes support for Federal scholarships, 
loan repayment programs, and direct support for training of all public health professionals 
in building the state’s public health workforce. As Nevada’s counties explore ways to stand 
up additional public health services, we look to the federal delegation to support these efforts 
with direct funding that supports these local programs. NACO supports a federal effort for a 
comprehensive state and local analysis of the Public Health System and current and effective 
local and regionally driven policy recommendations.  

Direct Assistance to Counties for Ongoing Mental Health Response: NACO thanks our 
Nevada Congressional delegation for supporting the initial CARES ACT funding, a vital first 
step in getting relief to our counties. Also, counties applaud the passage of the American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) which provided $1.04 billion in direct, flexible funding to local 
governments, to mitigate impacts from the pandemic and support the ongoing response to 
COVID-19.   As a direct result of the passage of ARPA, counties have stood up programs to 
assist small businesses, local nonprofits, and recover lost revenue, along with housing, 
nutrition and mental health programs with a focus on children’s behavioral health.   

With 75% of the U.S. population reliant on county-based behavioral health services, the 
National Association of Counties (NACo) launched a Commission on Mental Health and 
Wellbeing.  The Commission aims to bring county leaders from across the country together 
to address the mounting mental health crisis from the local government perspective while 
building and supporting the mental health workforce, and enhancing local crisis response 
systems. 

Agenda Item 8

https://www.naco.org/program/naco-commission-mental-health-and-wellbeing
https://www.naco.org/program/naco-commission-mental-health-and-wellbeing


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 2 

Health & Human Services 

Protect the Federal-State-Local Partnership for Medicaid: NACO supports maintaining 
the federal-state-local structure for financing and delivering Medicaid services while 
maximizing or enhancing flexibility to support local systems of care.  Counties have made the 
most of Medicaid’s flexibility and have supported health systems that serve a 
disproportionate share of low-income populations, including the homeless, and those cycling 
in and out of county jails.  Nevada counties are opposed to any measures that would further 
shift Medicaid costs to counties.  In Nevada, counties already provide an important part of 
Nevada’s non-federal Medicaid contribution, and as Nevada’s Medicaid caseloads continue 
to grow, counties are concerned about any proposal that increases State or local 
responsibility for Medicaid funding.  If Medicaid costs or costs for uncompensated care for 
indigent individuals were increased, counties in Nevada, who have limited ability to raise 
revenues, would be hard-pressed to meet new fiscal responsibilities.  Medicaid funding also 
impacts county hospitals - without sustained funding, some county hospitals may be forced 
to shutter their doors. Counties do support efforts to improve the efficiency, flexibility and 
effectiveness of policies and operations.  NACO supports the strengthening of the 
intergovernmental partnership envisioned in the Medicaid statute and the provision that 
requires the Federal Medical Assistance Percentage (FMAP) to be passed through to counties 
contributing to the non-federal share. 

Justice and Public Safety 

Medicaid Inmate Exclusion Policy (MIEP): While the state of Nevada passed a state-based 
solution to the MIEP, NACO continues to support a federal solution to the policy that upon 
detention (not conviction) inmates are no longer eligible for Federal health benefits. The 
current federal policy denies federal health benefits to individuals who are pending 
disposition, and still presumed innocent under the U.S. Constitution. Instead, NACO supports 
access to federal health benefits for non-convicted individuals as it would allow for improved 
coordination of care, and also decrease short-term costs to local taxpayers and long-term 
costs to the federal government. 

The National Association of Counties partnered with the National Sheriffs Association 
taskforce and issued a detailed report, which includes recommendations on removing the 
MIEP.  The report, provides information on steps federal, state, and local policymakers can 
address on inmate healthcare, addressing bail and various other criminal justice reforms. 
NACO urges Congress to amend the MIEP, allowing pre-trial detainees to access Medicaid 
services while awaiting trial. 

https://www.naco.org/resources/featured/naco-nsa-joint-task-force-report-addressing-federal-medicaid-inmate-exclusion-policy


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 3 

Mental Health and Jails:  County jails are not the appropriate place to treat individuals with 
mental illness, unfortunately, 64% of jail inmates in the United States have a behavioral 
health issue. In Nevada, our county jails are the largest provider of behavioral health services 
in the State. NACO supports sensible measures that promote and advance the overall safety 
of the public and the communities we serve. Within this context, we also support policies and 
approaches that would enhance the ability of counties to prevent and treat mental illness 
and substance use disorders, both in the community and within the context of the criminal 
justice system. For example, NACO encourages federal support for the NACo Stepping Up 
Initiative, a national initiative to reduce overincarceration of people with mental illnesses, 
that was launched in 2015 together with the CSG Justice Center and the APA Foundation. 

NACO also supports programs and legislation that divert non-violent individuals struggling 
with mental illness and/or substance use disorders from jails and into treatment programs 
while protecting overall public safety. Two critical federal programs that counties rely on to 
provide services to our incarcerated populations and reduce recidivism are the Justice and 
Mental Health Collaboration Program (JMHCP) which offers grants to help in the preparation 
of comprehensive plans to implement collaborative programs that target qualified offenders 
and promote public safety and the Second Chance Act, which supports state and local 
government, and nonprofit organizations in their work to reduce recidivism and improve 
outcomes for people returning from state and federal prisons, local jails, and juvenile 
facilities. 

Public Lands & Natural Resources 

Public Land Management and Funding County Services: As Nevada’s Congressional 
Delegation is aware, Nevada has the largest percentage of federal lands of any state in the 
contiguous 48 at over 80% federal ownership. Some of our counties (Nye, Esmeralda, 
Lander, Lincoln, and White Pine) have over 90 percent of their acreage administered by the 
federal government.  As a result, Nevada’s counties find their local economies, fiscal 
condition, and quality of life are greatly influenced by federal land management decisions. 
For example, in many Nevada communities, resource-based industries that are tied to public 
lands are their lifeblood and public access for recreation is also a high priority.  It is 
important to recognize the impacts of public land use on local economies and ways of life, as 
well as on demand for county services. For all Nevada counties, staying involved in federal 
land management planning and conservation efforts is critical. Counties provide road 
maintenance, emergency response, law enforcement and other mandated services on public 
lands and to public lands users. Counties also manage assets that require federal permits, 
leases, or easements. NACO supports the following: efforts to increase federal land 
managers’ engagement with county governments; appropriate federal revenue sharing to 
support county services; and the transfer of select federal land to states or counties when 
feasible and where appropriate, based on consultation with or direct recommendation of the 
affected county. NACO thanks the Nevada delegation for their support of full funding of the 
Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs. These payments 

https://www.naco.org/center/stepping
https://www.naco.org/center/stepping


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 4 

to counties offset a portion of the losses in tax revenues that result from the federal land 
ownership within their jurisdictions.  Because local governments are unable to collect 
property taxes on federal lands, Nevada’s rural counties increasingly rely on these payments 
to balance their budgets and provide essential services. NACO supports comparable funding 
that allows counties to provide the above-mentioned essential services and remain solvent. 

Consultation on Planning and Rulemakings:  NACO is appreciative of the delegation’s 
support on several significant land withdrawal proposals.  NACO will request cooperating 
agency status on federal planning associated with the National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) and engage in rulemaking efforts that affect Nevada’s counties.  Even where NACO is 
not a cooperating agency, consultation and coordination with counties is crucial.  Whether it 
is a species listing, or a monument designation, counties take federal mandates to consult 
very seriously. NACO is a Cooperating Agency for the BLM’s Greater Sage-grouse Land Use 
Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Statement, and the Western Solar Programmatic 
Environmental Impact Statement Update. NACO also is continuing discussions with the BLM 
about the possibility for a State-wide Resource Management Plan (RMP) Update.  NACO 
remains concerned about the 30x30 Initiative proposed by the Biden Administration and 
provided input on the “Conservation Atlas”.  

Renewable Energy: While supporting diversification of energy production that brings 
economic activity to Nevada, NACO has also long held the position that public lands 
administered by the federal agencies should be managed for multiple uses. NACO is 
concerned with the significant increase of proposals which would narrow public land use 
solely to renewable energy infrastructure (particularly solar arrays) across significant 
acreages. Nevada’s counties should be compensated for these use restrictions, as well as the 
services counties will be expected to provide as these projects are constructed. Tax 
abatements and exemptions extended to renewable energy companies result in county 
taxpayers subsidizing renewable energy projects. Renewable energy projects should 
contribute to their local economies with ongoing revenue streams so that the counties are 
able to provide the required support services during the life of these projects. County 
government should provide local input on renewable energy projects proposed on public 
lands and be remunerated for the permitting, infrastructure, safety and emergency services 
they will provide to these projects. NACO supports the Public Land Renewable Energy 
Development of Act of 2023 which would appropriate amounts collected for wind and or 
solar projects as bonus bids, rentals, fees, or other payments under a right-of-way, permit, 
or lease to the state (25%), the county (25%), Treasury (25%), and a Renewable Energy 
Resource Conservation Fund (25%). 

Withdrawals of Public Lands: The National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal 
Year 2023 approved the Navy’s proposed expansion of land ranges and modernization at the 
Naval Air Station Fallon (FRTC). The NDAA kept a “status quo” land withdrawal and did not 
include any expansion of the disposal boundary for the Air Force’s Nellis Test and Training 



Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 5 

Range (NTTR)NACO would like to thank the Nevada delegation for their efforts on the NDAA, 
and we appreciate the leadership and support from our Congressional Delegation on the 
Fallon withdrawal proposal. NACO looks forward to our continued partnership with the 
delegation to address county issues as the implementation of FRTC expansion and 
modernization moves forward. NACO remains concerned about the plans to expand NTTR, 
BLM initiating the process for additional land and mineral withdrawals in Northern Nevada, 
and NASA’s land withdrawal in Railroad Valley.  On all of these plans we strongly support 
engagement with the impacted local communities.  

Wild Horses and Burros: Nevada has by far the largest population of wild horses and 
burros (WH&B) on public lands of any State.  The Free-Roaming Wild Horses and Burros Act 
of 1971 requires the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) to maintain populations at an 
agency-determined appropriate management level (AML). Wild horse and burro 
populations continue to far exceed AMLs. Overpopulation remains a major impediment to 
effective land management and has created serious environmental concerns for wildlife, the 
ecology of Nevada’s rangelands, and for the horses themselves. Wild horses suffer death from 
starvation or dehydration due to resource scarcity. NACO supports the $153 million 2023 
request from BLM for this program, but believes additional funding will be needed for this 
program to bring WH&Bs to AML and maintain them at that level.  

NACO supports the "The Path Forward" proposal, which outlines a strategy of adoption, 
relocation, and fertility control that is both humane and promotes ecological balance. 
Achieving AML of Nevada’s WHB populations as quickly and efficiently as possible is of ever-
increasing urgency to Nevada’s rangeland ecosystems, and all of the socioeconomic activity 
that stems from having healthy rangelands across our state. NACO urges the Bureau of Land 
Management to follow the recommendations contained in their 2020 Report to Congress. 
The recommendations therein reflect those in the Path Forward and BLM’s recognition of 
the urgency of WHB management. 

Sage-Grouse: Stakeholders across Nevada have engaged in significant collaborative 
conservation efforts and species management planning regarding both the Bi-State and 
Greater Sage-grouse.  NACO has been a cooperating agency in both the Departments of 
Interior’s and Agriculture’s previous Greater Sage-grouse Land Use Plan Amendments.  
NACO believes the 2019 plans (with 2021 E.I.S. clarification) contain more accurate data and 
provide the flexibility necessary to accommodate the planning needs of the State of Nevada 
and Nevada’s counties.  We appreciate continued engagement on this issue even if a listing 
becomes necessary. 

https://www.energy.senate.gov/services/files/0869B02B-E9C5-4F0B-9AE8-9A8A1C85293E
https://www.blm.gov/sites/blm.gov/files/WHB-Report-2020-NewCover-051920-508.pdfWhile


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 6 

Telecommunications 

Boosting Broadband and Emerging Technologies: NACO supports the deployment and 
availability of emerging technologies, such as small cell 5G to all areas of Nevada, to ensure 
equitable economic and educational opportunities, as well as emergency preparedness. The 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law also known as the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
provided $42.45 Billion to funding broadband deployment in underserved areas. County 
officials must also fulfill their responsibilities as trustees of public property and as protectors 
of public safety and health during this deployment process. By preserving local authority, 
county governments can ensure that communications providers are serving the public 
interest regardless of the delivery platform. Federal policymakers should also support local 
decision-making and accountability and oppose any actions that would preempt or limit the 
zoning and siting authority of local governments.    

NACO continues to be grateful for Federal investment in broadband expansion and access, 
especially in rural areas of the Silver State. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
(IIJA)/H.R. 3684, created the Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment (BEAD) program 
to provide federal funding to all fifty states for broadband planning, deployment, mapping, 
equity, and adoption activities. Widespread access to broadband is significant for 
advancements in education, economic development and health care delivery. 

NACO has been a longtime supporter in calling for accurate broadband connectivity data 
which is essential to buildout critical broadband infrastructure in areas lacking access to 
high-speed internet. As companies continue to look to business-friendly states such as 
Nevada and as our counties continue to look to diversify their economies, it is essential that 
Nevada’s counties have the connectivity businesses require. NACO is pleased that Congress 
and federal agencies afforded counties the opportunity to participate in the Broadband Data 
Collection (BDC) process, which was intended to be instrumental in the distribution of more 
than $40 billion in federal broadband grants to states in 2023. The National Broadband Map 
consists of 2 datasets, each designed to be challenged as a means to continually identify the 
unserved and underserved communities most in need of funding for high-speed internet 
infrastructure investments. This is part of an ongoing effort to publish a new national map 
of broadband availability across the country to provide both fixed service and mobile service 
data. 

Cybersecurity:  Counties continue to face increasing risk of cyber threats from multiple 
sources every day and must ensure that citizens’ personal information and critical 
infrastructure are protected, recoverable and secured in the event of any potential breach. 
NACO supports the State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCGP), which is funded 
by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). The SLGCP provides a total of $1 billion in 
funding over the next four years, to support state and local efforts to address cyber risks to 
their information systems.  

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/3684


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 7 

County Financing and Funding 

Optimizing Intergovernmental Partnerships and Federalism: NACO is pleased with our 
partnership with our federal delegation, and we look to continued coordination on policies 
that benefit and impact Nevadans.  NACO continues to oppose unfunded mandates and 
federal initiatives that fail to protect county revenue. We support efforts that recognize and 
respect the unique roles and responsibilities of counties as essential partners in our nation’s 
intergovernmental system of federal, state, local and tribal officials. County governments are 
tasked with implementing both state and federal policies as well as regulations at the local 
level and should be included in all stages of the governing process.  NACO urges Congress to 
support measures that increase transparency, reduce regulatory burden, foster 
intergovernmental dialogue, and unite all levels of government in supporting our 
unparalleled system of federalism.  

Support Funding for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program: NACO 
strongly supports the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program established in 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The State of Nevada is a recipient of 
the State Administered CDBG program, also known as the Small Cities’ CDBG program or the 
CDBG non-entitlement. Each State develops annual funding priorities and criteria for 
selecting projects. Nevada’s priorities are established by the consolidated planning process, 
state priorities, and the regional community and economic development needs of each 
community. The CDBG program provides increased opportunities for elected county officials 
to plan, implement, and evaluate local community development and housing assistance 
programs.  

Transportation 

Long-term Transportation Funding and Financing: NACO is pleased to see the passage of 
the five-year, $973 billion Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), formally known as the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (P.L. 117-58). The BIL directs $284 billion toward 
modernizing and making improvements across all modes of transportation, with the 
majority of funding reserved for highways, roads and bridges. NACo created an interactive 
funding matrix that includes funding levels, program descriptions, and  eligibility 
requirements that is continually updated and easy to interpret. Nevada will see additional 
federal funding that invests in our roads, broadband, wastewater systems and other critical 
infrastructure projects. Nevada’s Counties support efforts by the administration and 
Congress to increase our nation’s infrastructure investments to help promote economic 
development, public safety, and overall mobility.  In Nevada, counties maintain over 75% of 
the roads in the State.  Counties should be recognized as major owners of transportation 
infrastructure in any comprehensive package presented by the administration and Congress, 
including future surface transportation reauthorization legislation. All federal infrastructure 
investment should reflect county priorities, such as: allocating more federal seed capital and 

https://airtable.com/appoN6JWzzUI9iMKc/shrgLmCBM5OE04yBt
https://airtable.com/appoN6JWzzUI9iMKc/shrgLmCBM5OE04yBt


Nevada Association of Counties 

        304 South Minnesota Street 

Carson City, NV 89703 

(775) 883-7863

www.nvnaco.org 

Nevada Association of Counties Federal Priorities – January 2024 8 

matching funds for locally owned infrastructure, increasing local decision-making authority 
and flexibility, and streamlining and shortening the federal permitting process while still 
requiring robust public participation and world-class environmental stewardship. 
Additionally, the long-term solvency of the Highway Trust Fund is critical as is the Federal 
Lands Access Program (FLAP) funding.  

Election Integrity & Funding 

Administering our Nation’s Elections: NACO supports federal policies that provide 
flexibility for local decision making and increased federal investments in the nation’s 
elections system. Election integrity and safety is critical to a strong democracy. As 
administrators and financers of our elections, NACO continues to support a consistent, 
predictable, and dedicated federal funding stream to assist counties with meeting the 
significant federal requirements already imposed on local governments administering 
elections. We also support efforts by Congress and the Administration to combat 
cybersecurity threats in a way that is inclusive of county election and technology officials. As 
Congress considers additional changes to our elections systems, NACO urges federal 
lawmakers to protect local control over election administration and oppose mandates and 
specific requirements regarding equipment, procedures, and personnel responsibilities. 



Cash and Fixed Income Summary
Risk Metric Value

Cash 268.04

MMFund 61,591.55

Fixed Income 442,210.64

Duration 1.629

Convexity 0.056

WAL 1.799

Years to Final Maturity 1.992

Years to Effective Maturity 1.945

Yield 5.493

Book Yield 3.943

Avg Credit Rating AA/Aa2/AA

Security Type DurationBalance Sheet

Book Value + Accrued 719,648.71

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss 27,934.88

Market Value + Accrued 747,583.60

Market Sector Issuer Concentration
Issuer % of Market Value +

Accrued

Other 41.569%

United States Department of The Treasury 13.844%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Large-Cap ETF 8.683%

First American Funds, Inc. - Government Obligations Fund 8.239%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 7.856%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF 6.832%

USAlliance Federal Credit Union 6.594%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 6.383%

--- 100.000%

Footnotes: 1,2

Account Review Moreton-NACO 
10/01/2023 - 10/31/2023 Dated: 11/02/2023

1

Agenda Item 9



Cash and Fixed Income Summary
Risk Metric Value

Cash 295.92

MMFund 75,174.63

Fixed Income 433,932.29

Duration 1.572

Convexity 0.052

WAL 1.733

Years to Final Maturity 1.921

Years to Effective Maturity 1.875

Yield 5.219

Book Yield 3.997

Avg Credit Rating AA/Aa2/AA

Security Type DurationBalance Sheet

Book Value + Accrued 721,188.47

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss 54,811.40

Market Value + Accrued 775,999.87

Market Sector Issuer Concentration
Issuer % of Market Value +

Accrued

Other 39.589%

United States Department of The Treasury 12.954%

First American Funds, Inc. - Government Obligations Fund 9.687%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Large-Cap ETF 9.158%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 8.325%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF 7.202%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 6.715%

USAlliance Federal Credit Union 6.369%

--- 100.000%

Footnotes: 1,2

Account Review Moreton-NACO 
11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 Dated: 12/06/2023

1



Cash and Fixed Income Summary
Risk Metric Value

Cash 627.12

MMFund 80,791.09

Fixed Income 435,181.77

Duration 1.514

Convexity 0.047

WAL 1.664

Years to Final Maturity 1.846

Years to Effective Maturity 1.802

Yield 4.904

Book Yield 3.998

Avg Credit Rating AA/Aa2/AA

Security Type DurationBalance Sheet

Book Value + Accrued 724,288.46

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss 74,793.70

Market Value + Accrued 799,082.16

Market Sector Issuer Concentration
Issuer % of Market Value +

Accrued

Other 38.513%

United States Department of The Treasury 12.744%

First American Funds, Inc. - Government Obligations Fund 10.110%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Large-Cap ETF 9.255%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 8.618%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF 7.333%

Vanguard Index Funds - Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 7.155%

USAlliance Federal Credit Union 6.273%

--- 100.000%

Footnotes: 1,2

Account Review Moreton-NACO 
12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023 Dated: 01/04/2024

1



Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet

October 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 431,306.07)($            
Zions Bank Sweep Account 1,202,574.02
PayPal Cash Account 22,133.47
Accounts Receivable 5,550.00
Prepaid Expenses 4,232.91

Total Current Assets 803,184.33

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 119,476.78
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 32,878.25
Accumulated Depreciation (375,462.58)

Total Property and Equipment 536,764.13

Other Assets
Investments 683,707.08
Investments - Cash Equivalents 61,591.55
Investments Interest Receivable 2,016.92
Investments Trades Receivable 268.04
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (2,356.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 278,944.00

Total Other Assets 1,034,671.59

Total Assets 2,374,620.05$           

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Copier Lease Liability 8,144.00$  
Accrued Payroll Benefits 21,025.36
Public Land Funds Payable (473,669.61)
Deferred Income 38,750.00
PERS Pension Liability 632,929.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 143,791.00

Total Current Liabilities 370,969.75

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 370,969.75

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,355,004.90
Net Income 648,645.40

Total Capital 2,003,650.30

Total Liabilities & Capital 2,374,620.05$           

1/22/2024 at 11:10 AM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

Agenda Item 10



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Ten Months Ending October 31, 2023

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 517,870.00 377,208.00 137.3%
Public Lands Assessment Dues 0.00 535,376.98 140,179.00 381.9%
Conference Revenues 8,385.00 88,685.00 80,000.00 110.9%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 100.0%
Interest Income 3,197.48 10,962.37 15,000.00 73.1%
National Programs 494.00 2,824.08 5,000.00 56.5%
Associate Memberships 0.00 17,400.00 15,000.00 116.0%
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments (8,219.49) 20,393.75 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 2,948.00 0.00

Total Revenues 3,856.99 1,266,460.18 702,387.00 180.3%

Expenses
Salaries 24,428.92 273,119.04 320,750.00 85.2%
Retirement: PERS 8,183.69 77,254.38 106,388.00 72.6%
Employee Health Insurance/Life 3,507.45 26,771.56 40,000.00 66.9%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 966.02 12,715.78 7,500.00 169.5%
Audit 0.00 8,700.00 9,000.00 96.7%
Board Meetings 217.97 3,541.33 8,000.00 44.3%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 1,151.95 13,487.34 19,000.00 71.0%
Conference Expenses 3,386.35 31,166.84 38,000.00 82.0%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 1,800.00 3,500.00 51.4%
Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 235.00 2,115.00 4,500.00 47.0%
Equipment Purchases 61.00 187.39 4,500.00 4.2%
IT Support 0.00 536.25 2,500.00 21.5%
Internet Service 799.00 7,155.38 9,000.00 79.5%
Legislative Expense 213.52 15,816.71 14,500.00 109.1%
Liability & Auto Insurance 926.25 6,013.20 5,500.00 109.3%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 1,000.00
Member Services 353.74 1,977.87 3,000.00 65.9%
Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 317.19
Office Supplies 403.46 3,744.51 3,500.00 107.0%
PEHB Liability 198.48 2,008.80 6,000.00 33.5%
Postage 0.00 344.28 500.00 68.9%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 2,328.02 31,296.55 15,500.00 201.9%
Property Taxes 0.00 3,051.37
Publications, Dues, Registrations 121.89 2,806.46 4,000.00 70.2%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 0.00
Representative Travel 2,266.86 12,801.67 15,000.00 85.3%
Special Studies/Litigation 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 717.94 10,503.37 21,249.00 49.4%
Sub Grant Employee Expense 12,271.01 51,164.44
Telephone 321.95 2,810.53 6,000.00 46.8%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 117.54 1,722.71 3,000.00 57.4%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 69.99 4,651.83 10,000.00 46.5%
WIR Dues 0.00 7,233.00 9,000.00 80.4%

Total Expenses 63,248.00 617,814.78 702,387.00 88.0%

Net Income (59,391.01)               648,645.40                - 

1/22/2024 at 11:10 AM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet

November 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 47,759.55$  
Zions Bank Sweep Account 659,976.56
Accounts Receivable 5,550.00
Prepaid Expenses 3,704.91

Total Current Assets 716,991.02

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 119,476.78
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 32,878.25
Accumulated Depreciation (375,462.58)

Total Property and Equipment 536,764.13

Other Assets
Investments 698,982.01
Investments - Cash Equivalents 75,174.63
Investments Interest Receivable 1,547.32
Investments Trades Receivable 295.92
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (2,356.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 278,944.00

Total Other Assets 1,063,087.88

Total Assets 2,316,843.03$            

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Copier Lease Liability 8,144.00$  
Accrued Payroll Benefits 21,025.36
Public Land Funds Payable (473,669.61)
Deferred Income 38,750.00
PERS Pension Liability 632,929.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 143,791.00

Total Current Liabilities 370,969.75

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 370,969.75

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,355,004.90
Net Income 590,868.38

Total Capital 1,945,873.28

Total Liabilities & Capital 2,316,843.03$            

1/22/2024 at 11:10 AM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2023

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 517,870.00 377,208.00 137.3%
Public Lands Assessment Dues 0.00 535,376.98 140,179.00 381.9%
Conference Revenues 575.00 89,260.00 80,000.00 111.6%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 100.0%
Interest Income 1,931.55 12,893.92 15,000.00 86.0%
National Programs 0.00 2,824.08 5,000.00 56.5%
Associate Memberships 0.00 17,400.00 15,000.00 116.0%
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments 28,416.29 48,810.04 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 2,948.00 0.00

Total Revenues 30,922.84 1,297,383.02 702,387.00 184.7%

Expenses
Salaries 36,643.38 309,762.42 320,750.00 96.6%
Retirement: PERS 8,183.69 85,438.07 106,388.00 80.3%
Employee Health Insurance/Life (578.11) 26,193.45 40,000.00 65.5%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 1,449.03 14,164.81 7,500.00 188.9%
Audit 925.00 9,625.00 9,000.00 106.9%
Board Meetings 0.00 3,541.33 8,000.00 44.3%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 786.65 14,273.99 19,000.00 75.1%
Conference Expenses 9,466.27 40,633.11 38,000.00 106.9%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 1,800.00 3,500.00 51.4%
Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 235.00 2,350.00 4,500.00 52.2%
Equipment Purchases 0.00 187.39 4,500.00 4.2%
IT Support 0.00 536.25 2,500.00 21.5%
Internet Service 0.00 7,155.38 9,000.00 79.5%
Legislative Expense 157.11 15,973.82 14,500.00 110.2%
Liability & Auto Insurance 528.00 6,541.20 5,500.00 118.9%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 1,000.00
Member Services 410.20 2,388.07 3,000.00 79.6%
Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 317.19
Office Supplies 280.76 4,025.27 3,500.00 115.0%
PEHB Liability 198.48 2,207.28 6,000.00 36.8%
Postage 85.11 429.39 500.00 85.9%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 8,403.02 39,699.57 15,500.00 256.1%
Property Taxes 0.00 3,051.37
Publications, Dues, Registrations 97.99 2,904.45 4,000.00 72.6%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 0.00
Representative Travel 338.10 13,139.77 15,000.00 87.6%
Special Studies/Litigation 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 4,204.21 14,707.58 21,249.00 69.2%
Sub Grant Employee Expense 16,598.00 67,762.44
Telephone 287.97 3,098.50 6,000.00 51.6%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 0.00 1,722.71 3,000.00 57.4%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 0.00 4,651.83 10,000.00 46.5%
WIR Dues 0.00 7,233.00 9,000.00 80.4%

Total Expenses 88,699.86 706,514.64 702,387.00 100.6%

Net Income (57,777.02)               590,868.38                - 

1/22/2024 at 11:10 AM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 73,266.51$                
Zions Bank Sweep Account 620,302.89
Accounts Receivable 5,550.00
Prepaid Expenses 3,172.46

Total Current Assets 702,291.86

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 119,476.78
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 32,878.25
Accumulated Depreciation (390,940.28)

Total Property and Equipment 521,286.43

Other Assets
Investments 715,994.29
Investments - Cash Equivalents 80,791.09
Investments Interest Receivable 1,669.66
Investments Trades Receivable 627.12
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (2,356.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 278,944.00

Total Other Assets 1,086,170.16

Total Assets 2,309,748.45$           

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 23,027.80$                
Copier Lease Liability 8,144.00
Accrued Payroll Benefits 21,025.36
Public Land Funds Payable (473,669.61)
Deferred Income 99,033.00
PERS Pension Liability 632,929.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 143,791.00

Total Current Liabilities 454,280.55

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 454,280.55

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,355,004.90
Net Income 500,463.00

Total Capital 1,855,467.90

Total Liabilities & Capital 2,309,748.45$           

1/22/2024 at 11:11 AM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2023

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 517,870.00 377,208.00 137.3%
Public Lands Assessment Dues 0.00 535,376.98 140,179.00 381.9%
Conference Revenues 4,610.00 93,870.00 80,000.00 117.3%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 100.0%
Interest Income 1,572.56 14,466.48 15,000.00 96.4%
National Programs 239.90 3,063.98 5,000.00 61.3%
Associate Memberships 850.00 18,250.00 15,000.00 121.7%
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments 23,082.28 71,892.32 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 2,948.00 0.00

Total Revenues 30,354.74 1,327,737.76 702,387.00 189.0%

Expenses
Salaries 44,428.92 354,191.34 320,750.00 110.4%
Retirement: PERS 19,085.10 104,523.17 106,388.00 98.2%
Employee Health Insurance/Life 8,603.73 34,797.18 40,000.00 87.0%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 1,285.02 15,449.83 7,500.00 206.0%
Audit 0.00 9,625.00 9,000.00 106.9%
Board Meetings 0.00 3,541.33 8,000.00 44.3%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 1,638.20 15,912.19 19,000.00 83.7%
Conference Expenses 0.00 42,633.11 38,000.00 112.2%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 1,800.00 3,500.00 51.4%
Depreciation Expense 15,477.70 15,477.70
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 470.00 2,820.00 4,500.00 62.7%
Equipment Purchases 0.00 187.39 4,500.00 4.2%
IT Support 0.00 536.25 2,500.00 21.5%
Internet Service 1,598.00 8,753.38 9,000.00 97.3%
Legislative Expense 534.65 16,508.47 14,500.00 113.9%
Liability & Auto Insurance 532.45 7,073.65 5,500.00 128.6%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 1,000.00
Member Services 0.00 2,388.07 3,000.00 79.6%
Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 317.19
Office Supplies 327.89 4,353.16 3,500.00 124.4%
PEHB Liability 198.48 2,405.76 6,000.00 40.1%
Postage 39.82 469.21 500.00 93.8%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 1,697.50 41,397.07 15,500.00 267.1%
Property Taxes 1,042.23 4,093.60
Publications, Dues, Registrations 845.98 3,750.43 4,000.00 93.8%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 0.00
Representative Travel 870.00 14,009.77 15,000.00 93.4%
Special Studies/Litigation 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 742.34 15,449.92 21,249.00 72.7%
Sub Grant Employee Expense 18,717.77 86,480.21
Telephone 524.35 3,622.85 6,000.00 60.4%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 0.00 1,722.71 3,000.00 57.4%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 99.99 4,751.82 10,000.00 47.5%
WIR Dues 0.00 7,233.00 9,000.00 80.4%

Total Expenses 118,760.12 827,274.76 702,387.00 117.8%

Net Income (88,405.38)               500,463.00                - 

1/22/2024 at 11:11 AM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



2024 

NACO Meeting and Event Calendar – Adopted
NACO Board Meetings - NACO Annual Conference (Carson City)             
WIR Conference - National Association Conferences                
Recognized Holiday’s (NACO Offices Closed)      

January February March 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 

April May June 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 Meeting to be held in an 
eastern rural county. 

July August September 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 

October November December 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 
Meeting to be 
held in Clark 

County. 

Agenda Item 14



2024 

DIRECTORY 
Updated 04-12-2023 

Agenda Item 15

For Draft Purposes Only - 
Not for Use or Distribution



NACO proudly serves Nevada’s counties, operating 

 under the Following Mission & Vision Statements: 

To encourage county government to adopt and maintain local, regional, 
state and national cooperation which will result in a positive influence on 

public policy and optimize the management of county resources; to provide 
valuable education and support services that will maximize efficiency and foster 

public trust in county government.   
Vinson Guthreau, Executive Director 

vguthreau@nvnaco.org 

Jennifer Berthiaume, Government Affairs Manager 
jberthiaume@nvnaco.org 

Jacob Brinkerhoff, Natural Resources Manager 
jbrinkerhoff@nvnaco.org 

Amy Hyne-Sutherland, Public Health Coordinator 
ahynesutherland@nvnaco.org 

Amanda Berg, Office Manager 
aberg@nvnaco.org 

www.nvnaco.org 

The NACO Staff 



Why Counties Matter…………………………………..………….………..  1 

A Year in Review……………….………………………………………...…..   2 

NACO Board of Directors………………………………….………..…….   3 

Affiliate Members……………….……………………………………….....   4 

Committee of the Emeritus…………………....……………………….   5 

Platinum Partners…...….....………………………………………..……..   6 

 County Information 

  Carson City……….…………..…………………………………..…………   7 

 Churchill County…..……….……….………………………………..…..   8 

   Clark County…..………...…………….………………………...………..   9 

  Douglas County………..…………….……………………………...…… 10 

 Elko County…….……..……….…………………………………………… 11 

Esmeralda County……...….…...…………………………………...... 12 

 Eureka County…..…………………………………….……………..…..  13 

  Humboldt County…….……………………..……………………..……  14 

 Lander County……………………………………………………………..  15 

 Lincoln County……….……………….……………...……………..…...  16 

   Lyon County………...…………….…………………..…………………..  17 

 Mineral County……...……………………………………….…………… 18 

 Nye County…………..………………………………………………….….  19 

 Pershing County…...……....…………………………………………..   20 

   Storey County…………………...………………………………………..  21 

   Washoe County……………….……..……………………………………  22 

White Pine County……..….…………………………………………...  23 

 NACO Past Presidents………..………………………….....………...  24 

Nevada State Information 

State Elected Officials….……………………………………………..   25 

 Nevada State Senate…….……….…………….....…..…………….   26 

 Nevada State Assembly………………………………………………   27 

  Legislative Counsel Bureau…….…………………………………..   28 

 Nevada Federal Elected Officials…………..…………………….   29 

 Other Information 

  National & State Board & Committee Representation..…………….……..   30 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



 

 

WHY COUNTIES MATTER 

1 



Nevada’s Counties - United & Unique 

Nevada’s Counties entered 2023 with a robust local government-focused legislative agenda.  NACO 

staff navigated a Legislature with a different look, nearly 16 Freshman legislators having just been 

elected and Nevada seeing a new Governor, following the election of former Clark County Sheriff Joe 

Lombardo. 

The Nevada League of Cities and NACO spearheaded a partnership with UNR to provide a two-day 

newly elected official training program.  Further, with the passage of AB 1 in the 2021 session, NACO 

provided new legislators an overview of “Why Counties Matter”, including information on local      

services, providing resources to legislators and insight on fiscal matters, given the impact state policy 

makers have on local government.  This training was well received and assisted our advocacy efforts 

throughout the session on issues relating to local government.   

NACO’s legislative work did not begin on day one of the legislative session, we engaged legislators, 

shared the county story and made ourselves a resource to policy makers on county related issues 

leading up to the first day of the 82nd Legislative Session.  Ultimately, a majority of NACO’s five     

sponsored bills passed the legislature and were signed by the Governor.  

The session kicked off with NACO, Washoe and Clark Counties providing well received presentations 

to both the Senate and Assembly Government Affairs Committees and as we navigated the 120-day 

legislative session, worked to beat back proposed changes to county fiscal and administrative      

authority.  This year, county governments were more united in our approach to policy making which 

did not go unnoticed by Legislators. 

NACO continues to support and provide resources to our 100% county membership, undertaking a 

statewide, community driven public healthcare workforce study.  We continue to provide interim 

support on Indigent defense, county funding, emergency response, land use and effective planning of 

the expenditure of opioid settlement dollars.   

County commissioners, staff and our private sector partners across the state gathered in beautiful 

Elko County for the 2023 NACO Annual Conference. All told, nearly 300 individuals attended the     

3-day event, hearing from experts on panels discussing public health, coordinating emergency

response, broadband deployment, local tax abatements, economic development, workforce

development, public lands, and a wrap up of the Legislative session.  NACO honored Lincoln County

Commissioner Varlin Higbee as our outgoing President for 2023.

NACO staff continue to do annual visits to counties to share NACO programs and advocacy.  NACO is 

proud of the collaboration, leadership, and accomplishments of our member counties in 2023. We 

are looking forward to celebrating our 100-year anniversary of this esteemed organization in 2024, 

with an eye on the future and preparing ourselves for the next 100 years.   

A YEAR IN REVIEW - 2023 

2 



OFFICERS & EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

President 

Stacey Giomi 

Carson City 

President Elect 

Delmo Andreozzi 

Elko County 

Vice President 

Past President 

Varlin Higbee 

Lincoln County 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Stacey Giomi, Carson City 

Bus Scharmann, Churchill County 

James Gibson, Clark County 

Marilyn Kirkpatrick, Clark County 

Mark Gardner, Douglas County 

Delmo Andreozzi, Elko County 

Rex Steninger, Elko County 

Ralph Keyes, Esmeralda County 

Rich McKay, Eureka County 

Ken Tipton, Humboldt County 

Dee Helming, Lander County 

Varlin Higbee, Lincoln County 

Mike Reese, Lincoln County 

Wes Henderson, Lyon County 

, Mineral County 

Ron Boskovich, Nye County 

Joe Crim Jr., Pershing County 

Jay Carmona, Storey County 

Jeanne Herman, Washoe County 

Clara Andriola, Washoe County 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF  COUNTIES (NACo) 

Board of Directors   Western Interstate Region (WIR) 
 Marilyn Kirkpatrick, Clark County      Rex Steninger, Elko County 
 Varlin Higbee, Lincoln County  Ken, Tipton, Humboldt County 

The NACO Board of Directors is comprised of at least one Commissioner from each of our member 
Counties plus the President’s of our Affiliate Member organizations. Clark and Washoe Counties may 
elect to have a second member serve on NACO’s Executive Committee and an additional 
representative may be appointed from the counties of a current officer as well as of those 
Commissioners representing Nevada on the National Association of Counties Board and the Western 
Interstate Region Board. 

NACO LEADERSHIP 

3 

Clark and Washoe Counties receive a seat on the Executive Committee as well as a seat on the Board of Directors. If the NACO President is 
from a county other than Clark or Washoe, they may at their discretion appoint a second member to the Board during that year. Counties 
with appointees to the NACo Board of Directors or WIR, may at their discretion appoint a second member to the Board. 



 

 

NACO values the relationship with its Affiliate Members. Working together with affiliated county 
groups produces mutually beneficial results and fosters understanding and appreciation within local 

government.  The following Affiliate Presidents are valuable members of the NACO Board. 
 
 

ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY TREASURERS OF NEVADA 

Cheryl Paul—Elko County 

 

COUNTY FISCAL OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

Jennifer McCain—Storey County 

 

NEVADA ASSESSORS ASSOCIATION 

Trent Tholen—Douglas County 

 

NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY CLERKS AND ELECTION OFFICIALS 

Lacey Donaldson—Pershing County 

 

NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES  ADMINISTRATORS 

Karyn Smith—Nye County 

 

NEVADA DISTRICT ATTORNEYS ASSOCIATION 

Mark Jackson—Douglas County 

 

NEVADA JUDGES ASSOCIATION 

 

NEVADA SHERIFFS AND CHIEFS ASSOCATION 

Pam Delporto—Executive Director 

 

RECORDERS ASSOCIATION OF NEVADA 

Tasha Hessey—Churchill County 

AFFILIATE MEMBERS 

4 



Place holder 

NACO COMMITTEES 

5 



Placeholder for partnership program members 

For information on how to become an Associate Member of NACO please contact Amanda Evans at 775-883-

7863 or by email at aberg@nvnaco.org. 6 



 

 

Board meets: 1st & 3rd Thursday's 

851 E. William Street 7 

CARSON CITY 

 201 N. Carson Street 
 Carson City, NV 89701 
 www.carson.org 

     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Mayor Lori Bagwell 283-7144 lbagwell@carson.org 
     
 Supervisor Stacey Giomi 283-7582 sgiomi@carson.org 
     
 Supervisor Curtis Horton 283-7973 chorton@carson.org 
     
 Supervisor Lisa Schuette 283-7933 lschuette@carson.org 
     
 Supervisor Maurice White 283-7934 mwhite@carson.org 
     
 Assessor Kimberly Adams 887-7037 kadams@carson.org 
     
 Clerk/Recorder William “Scott” Hoen 887-2260 shoen@carson.org 
     
 District Attorney Jason Woodbury 887-2070 jwoodbury@carson.org 
     
 Sheriff Kenneth Furlong 887-2500 kfurlong@carson.org 
     
 Treasurer Andrew Rasor 887-2092 arasor@carson.org 
     
 City Manager Nancy Paulson 283-7944 npaulson@carson.org 
     
 Deputy City Manager Stephanie Hicks 283-7904 shicks@carson.org 
     
 Building James Wentworth 283-7672 jwentworth@carson.org 
     
 Chief Financial Officer Sheri Russell 283-7222 srussell@carson.org 
     

 

Community                      
Development 

Hope Sullivan 283-7075 hsullivan@carson.org 

     
 Fire Sean Slamon 283-7722 sslamon@carson.org 
     

 

Health & Human         
Services 

Nicki Aaker 887-2190 naaker@carson.org 

     
 Human Resources  283-7088  
     
 Parks & Recreation Jennifer Budge 283-7345 jbudge@carson.org 
     
 Public Works Darren Schulz 283-7391 dschulz@carson.org 
     
 Social Services Mary Jane Ostrander 283-7234 mostrander@carson.org 

http://www.carson.org/
mailto:lbagwell@carson.org
mailto:sgiomi@carson.org
mailto:sjones@carson.org
mailto:lschuette@carson.org
mailto:mwhite@carson.org
mailto:ddawley@carson.org
mailto:jwoodbury@carson.org
mailto:kfurlong@carson.org
mailto:grobertson@carson.org
mailto:npaulson@carson.org
mailto:cgaworski@carson.org
mailto:srussell@carson.org
mailto:lplemel@carson.org
mailto:sslamon@carson.org
mailto:naaker@carson.org
mailto:jbudge@carson.org
mailto:dschulz@carson.org
mailto:mostrander@carson.org


CHURCHILL COUNTY 

155 N. Taylor Street 
Fallon, NV 89406 

www.churchillcountynv.gov

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 

Commission Chair Myles Getto 866-1289 myles.getto@churchillcountynv.gov 

Commission Vice Chair Bus Scharmann 666-5878 bus.scharmann@churchillcountynv.gov

Commissioner Justin Heath 666-5757 justin.heath@churchillcountynv.gov 

Assessor Denise Mondhink-Felton 423-6584 denise.felton@churchillcountynv.gov 

Clerk/Treasurer Linda Rothery 423-6028 linda.rothery@churchillcountynv.gov 

District Attorney Art Mallory 423-6561 amallory@churchillda.org 

Recorder Tasha Hessey 423-6001 tasha.hessey@churchillcountynv.gov 

Sheriff Richard Hickox 423-3116 rhickox@so.churchill.nv.us 

County Manager Jim Barbee 423-5136 jim.barbee@churchillcountynv.gov 

Building Marie Henson 428-0264 marie.henson@churchillcountynv.gov

Commission Secretary Pamela Moore 423-4092 pam.moore@churchillcountynv.gov 

Comptroller Sherry Wideman 428-1414 sherry.wideman@churchillcountynv.gov 

Emergency Management Rich Ingram 423-4188 rich.ingram@churchillcountynv.gov 

Facilities, Parks & 
Recreation 

Jorge Guerrero 423-7733 jorge.guerrero@churchillcountynv.gov

Fire Jared Dooley 423-6521 jdooley@fallonfire.org 

Human Resources Geof Stark—(?) 428-1311 geof.stark@churchillcountynv.gov 

Public Defender 
Jacob Sommers          

Wright Noel (Alternate) 
428-6054     
428-6355

Jacob.sommer@churchillcountynv.gov 
wright.noel@churchillcountynv.gov 

Public Works & Planning Chris Spross 423-7627 chris.spross@churchillcountynv.gov 

Public Info. Officer Anne McMillin 423-2266 anne.mcmillin@churchillcountynv.gov

Roads Gary Fowkes 423-4133 gary.fowkes@churchillcountynv.gov 

Social Services Shannon Ernst 423-6695 shannon.ernst@churchillcountynv.gov

Board Meets: 1st Thursday & 3rd Wednesday 
155 N. Taylor Street 

8 

http://www.churchillcounty.org/
mailto:jheath@churchillcountynv.gov
mailto:polsen@churchillcountynv.gov
mailto:assessor-dlf@churchillcounty.org
mailto:lrothery@churchillcounty.org
mailto:amallory@churchillda.org
mailto:tasha@churchillcounty.org
mailto:rhickox@so.churchill.nv.us
mailto:jbarbee@churchillcounty.org
mailto:mhenson@churchillcounty.org
mailto:sherry@churchillcounty.org
mailto:mheidemann@churchillcounty.org
mailto:jguerrero@churchillcounty.org
mailto:jdooley@fallonfire.org
mailto:gdstark@churchillcounty.org
mailto:cspross@churchillcountynv.gov
mailto:amcmillin@churchillcounty.org
mailto:gfowkes@churchillcounty.org
mailto:ssdirector@churchillcounty.org


 

 

CLARK COUNTY    

500 S. Grand Central Parkway 

Las Vegas, NV 89155 

www.clarkcountynv.gov 

 

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
    

Commission Chair Tick Segerblom 455-3500 ccdiste@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commission Vice Chair William McCurdy II 455-3500 ccdistd@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner James Gibson 455-3500 ccdistg@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Justin Jones 455-3500 ccdistf@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Marilyn Kirkpatrick 455-3500 ccdistb@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Ross Miller 455-3500 ccdistc@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Michael Naft 455-3500 ccdista@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Assessor Briana Johnson 455-3882 bap@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Clerk Lynn Goya 671-0500 clerkm@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

District Attorney Steven Wolfson 671-2500 steven.wolfson@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Recorder Debbie Conway 455-4336 djc@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Sheriff Kevin McMahill 828-3231 sheriff@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Treasurer J. Ken Diaz 455-4323  
    

County Manager Kevin Schiller 455-3530 kevin.schiller@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Deputy County Manager Abigail Frierson 455-3530 abigail.frierson@Clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Deputy County Manager Les Lee Shell 455-3530 LLS@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Deputy County Manager Lisa Kremer 455-3530 lkremer@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Deputy County Manager Sam Bateman 455-3530 sbateman@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Building Jim Gerren 455-3000 jgc@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Chief Financial Officer Jessica Colvin 455-3530 jessica.colvin@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Emergency Management Billy Samuels 455-5710 bsamuels@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Fire John Steinbeck 455-5710 john.steinbeck@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Planning Sami Real 455-3414 sami.real@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Public Works Denis Cederburg 455-6000 dlc@clarkcountynv.gov 
    

Social Services Jamie Sorensen 455-4270 jsorenson@clarkcountynv.gov 

Board meets: 1st & 3rd Tuesday 

500 Grand Central Parkway 9 

http://www.clarkcountynv.gov/
mailto:ccdiste@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:ccdistd@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:ccdistg@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:ccdistf@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:ccdistb@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:ccdista@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:bap@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:clerkm@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:steven.wolfson@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:djc@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:sheriff@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:kevin.schiller@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:abigail.frierson@Clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:LLS@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:rtarr@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:jmwells@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:jstueve@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:jessica.colvin@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:john.steinbeck@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:john.steinbeck@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:nancya@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:dlc@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:tib@clarkcountynv.gov


DOUGLAS COUNTY 

PO Box 218 

Minden, NV 89423 

www.douglascountynv.gov

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 

Commission Chair Mark Gardner 782-9821 mgardner@douglasnv.us 

Commission Vice Chair Wes Rice 782-9821 wrice@douglasnv.us 

Commissioner Sharla Hales 782-9821 shales@douglasnv.us 

Commissioner Walt Nowosad 782-9821 wnowosad@douglasnv.us 

Commissioner Danny Tarkanian 782-9821 dtarkanian@douglasnv.us 

Assessor Trent Tholen 782-9834 ttholen@douglasnv.us 

Clerk/Treasurer Amy Burgans 782-9014 aburgans@douglasnv.us 

District Attorney Mark Jackson 782-9800 mjackson@douglas.nv.gov 

Recorder Shawyne Garren 782-9025 sgarren@douglasnv.us 

Sheriff Dan Coverly 782-9900 dcoverly@douglasnv.us 

County Manager Patrick Cates 782-9821 pcates@douglasnv.us 

Assistant County Manager Jennifer Davidson 782-9821 jdavidson@douglasnv.us 

CFO Kathy Lewis 782-6202 KMLewis@douglasnv.us 

Building  Tim Davis 782-6224 tdavis@douglasnv.us 

Community Development Tom Dallaire 782-6230 tdallaire@douglasnv.us 

Fire Tod Carlini 782-9048 tcarlini@eastforkfire.org 

Human Resources Wendy Lang 782-9860 wlang@douglasnv.us 

Parks & Recreation Ryan Stanton 782-5500 rstanton@douglasnv.us 

Public Works Philip Ritger 783-6480 pritger@douglasnv.us 

Social Services  Jodi Qualls 782-9825 jqualls@douglasnv.us 

Board meets: 1st Thursday - 1616 8th Street Minden 

3rd Thursday - 169 Highway 50 Stateline 
10 

http://www.douglascountynv.gov/
mailto:mgardner@douglasnv.us
mailto:wrice@douglasnv.us
mailto:jengles@douglasnv.us
mailto:wnowosad@douglasnv.us
mailto:dtarkanian@douglasnv.us
mailto:ttholen@douglasnv.us
mailto:apoole@douglasnv.us
mailto:mjackson@douglas.nv.gov
mailto:kellison@douglasnv.us
mailto:dcoverly@douglasnv.us
mailto:jdavidson@douglasnv.us
mailto:tdavis@douglasnv.us
mailto:tdallaire@douglasnv.us
mailto:tcarlini@eastforkfire.org
mailto:wlang@douglasnv.us
mailto:rstanton@douglasnv.us
mailto:pritger@douglasnv.us
mailto:cawitt@douglasnv.us


 

 

ELKO COUNTY    

540 Court Street Suite 101 

Elko, NV 89801 

www.elkocountynv.net 

 

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
    

Commission Chair Delmo Andreozzi 738-5398 dandreozzi@elkocountynv.net 
    

Commission Vice Chair Rex Steninger 738-5398 rsteninger@elkocountynv.net 
    

Commissioner Wilde Brough 738-5398 wbrough@elkocountynv.net 
    

Commissioner Travis Gerber 738-5398 tgerber@elkocountynv.net 
    

Commissioner Jon Karr 738-5398 jkarr@elkocountynv.net 
    

Assessor Janet Iribarne 738-5217 jiribarne@elkocountynv.net 
    

Clerk Rebecca Plunkett 753-4600 clerk@elkocountynv.net 
    

District Attorney Tyler Ingram 738-3101 tingram@elkocountynv.net 
    

Recorder Mike Smales 738-6526 recorder@elkocountynv.net 
    

Sheriff Aitor Narvaiza 777-2501 elkosheriff@elkocountynv.net 
    

Treasurer Cheryl Paul 738-5694 treasurer@elkocountynv.net 
    

County Manager Amanda Osborne 738-5398 aosborne@elkocountynv.net 
    

Commission Assistant Michele Petty 738-5398 mpetty@elkocountynv.net 
    

Comptroller Susan Paprocki 753-7073 spaprocki@elkocountynv.net 
    

Fire Matt Peterson 738-9960 mpeterson@elkocountynv.net 
    

Human Services  738-4375  
    

Natural Resources      
(Asst. County Manager) 

Curtis Moore 738-6816 cmoore@elkocountynv.net 

    

Planning Corey Rice 738-6816 crice@elkocountynv.net 
    

Public Works Luis Martinez 738-6816 lmartinez@elkocountynv.net 
    

Roads Dennis Price II 738-5036 ehighway@elkocountynv.net 
    

Social Services Kathy Jones 738-4375 kjones@elkocountynv.net 
    

    
    

    

Board meets: 1st Wednesday & Thursday and 3rd Wednesday 

540 Court Street 

11 

http://www.elkocountynv.net/
mailto:dandreozzi@elkocountynv.net
mailto:rsteninger@elkocountynv.net
mailto:wbrough@elkocountynv.net
mailto:jkarr@elkocountynv.net
mailto:krussell@elkocountynv.net
mailto:clerk@elkocountynv.net
mailto:tingram@elkocountynv.net
mailto:recorder@elkocountynv.net
mailto:elkosheriff@elkocountynv.net
mailto:treasurer@elkocountynv.net
mailto:aosborne@elkocountynv.net
mailto:mpetty@elkocountynv.net
mailto:lbingaman@elkocountynv.net
mailto:cmoore@elkocountynv.net
mailto:crice@elkocountynv.net
mailto:jkerr@elkocountynv.net
mailto:ehighway@elkocountynv.net


 

 

   ESMERALDA COUNTY 

PO Box 517 

Goldfield, NV 89013 

www.accessesmeralda.com 

 

    

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
    

Commission Chair Ralph Keyes 842-2471 commissionerkeyes13@yahoo.com 
    

Commission Vice Chair Rachel Holt 277-1707 rholt@esmeraldacountynv.com 
    

Commissioner Delon (De) Winsor 530-7443 commissionerdewinsor@gmail.com 
    

Assessor Kathleen Keyes 485-6380 kkeyes@esmeralkacountynv.org 
    

Clerk/Treasurer LaCinda Elgan 485-6309 celgan@esmeraldacountynv.org  
    

District Attorney Robert Glennen III 485-3652 rglennen@esmeraldacountynv.org 
    

Recorder/Auditor Vera Boyer 485-6337 vboyer@esmeraldacountynv.org  
    

Sheriff NickDondero 485-6373 ecso@esmeraldacountynv.org  
    

Administrative Assistant 
Senior Transportation 

Maureen Glennen 485-3406 esmboc2@gmail.com 

    

Public Works Emory LaRue 485-3483 escopw@gmail.com 
    

Roads Carl Shrider 485-3448 ecrd@esmeraldacountynv.org  
    

Social Services LaCinda Elgan 485-6309 celgan@esmeraldacountynv.org 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

Board meets: 1st & 3rd Tuesday 

233 Crook Street 
12 

http://www.accessesmeralda.com/
mailto:commissionerkeyes13@yahoo.com
mailto:commissionerdewinsor@gmail.com
mailto:assessor3@frontiernet.net
mailto:celgan@esmeraldacountynv.org
mailto:escodaoffice@gmail.com
mailto:vboyer@esmeraldacountynv.org
mailto:ecso@esmeraldacountynv.org
mailto:esmboc2@gmail.com
mailto:escopw@gmail.com
mailto:ecrd@esmeraldacountynv.org
mailto:celgan@esmeraldacountynv.org


 

 

 
 EUREKA COUNTY    

 PO Box 694 

 Eureka, NV 89316 

 www.co.eureka.nv.us 
     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair Martin Plaskett 237-7211 mplaskett@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Michael Sharkozy 237-7211 mikesonni1943@gmail.com 
     

 Commissioner Rich McKay 237-7211 rmckay@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Assessor Michael Mears 237-5270 mmears@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Clerk/Recorder Kathy Bacon-Bowling 237-5263 kbowling@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 District Attorney Ted Beutel 237-5315 tbeutel@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Sheriff Jesse Watts 237-5330 jjwatts@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Treasurer Pernecia Johnson 237-5262 pjohnson@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Commission Clerk Jackie Berg 237-7211 jberg@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Comptroller Kim Todd 237-6128 ktodd@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Natural Resources Jake Tibbitts 237-6010 jtibbitts@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Public Works Jeb Rowley 237-5372 jrowley@eurekacountynv.gov 
     

 Social Services Linda Gordon 237-5597 lgordon@eurekacountynv.gov 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board meets: 6th & 20th of each month 

 10 S. Main Street 
13 

http://www.co.eureka.nv.us/
mailto:mikesonni1943@gmail.com
mailto:rmckay@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:mmears@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:lhoehne@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:tbeutel@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:jwatts@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:pjohnson@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:jberg@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:ktodd@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:jtibbitts@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:rdamele@eurekacountynv.gov
mailto:moram@eurekacountynv.gov


 

 

   HUMBOLDT COUNTY 

50 W. Fifth Street 

Winnemucca, NV 89445 

www.hcnv.us 

    

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
    

Commission Chair Robert (Ken) Tipton 623-6300 ken.tipton@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Commission Vice Chair Mark Evatz 623-6300 mark.evatz@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Ron Cerri 623-6300 rebelcreekranch@yahoo.com 
    

Commissioner Jesse Hill 623-6300 jesse.hill@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Commissioner Tom Hoss 623-6300 tom.hoss@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Assessor Andy Heiser 623-6310 andy.heiser@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Clerk Tami Rae Spero 623-6343 county.clerk@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

District Attorney Kevin Pasquale 623-6363 kevin,pasquale@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Recorder Tia Lang 623-6412 tia.lang@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Sheriff Angel Cardenas 623-6419 angel.cardenas@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Treasurer Rhona Lecumberry 623-6444 treasurer@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

County Manager Don Kalkoske 623-6300 don.kalkoske@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Building Mike Coldiron 623-6322 mike.coldiron@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Comptroller/Auditor Gina Rackley 623-6467 comptroller@humboldtcountynv.gov 
    

Human Services Denni Byrd 623-6342 denni.byrd@humboldtcountynv.gov 

    

Planning Betty Lawrence 623-6392 betty.lawrence@humboldtcountynv.gov 

    
Public Works/Roads  623-6416  

    
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Board meets: 1st & 3rd Monday 

50 W. Fifth Street 14 

http://www.hcnv.us/
mailto:commissionerrc@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:commissionerjf@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:commissionerrc@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:commissionerjh@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:commissionerth@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:coclerk@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:hcda-michael@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:recorder@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:mallen@hcsonv.us
mailto:treasurer@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:dave.mendiola@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:comptroller@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:Nikki.linn@humboldtcountynv.gov
mailto:betty.lawrence@humboldtcountynv.gov


 

 

   LANDER COUNTY 

50 State Route 305 

Battle Mountain, NV 89820 

www.landercountynv.org 

    

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
    

Commission Chair Bryan Sparks 635-2885 bsparks@landercountynv.org 

    

Commission Vice Chair Thomas  Wallace 445-7802 twallace@landercountynv.org 

    

Commissioner Kathleen V. Ancho 635-2885 kancho@landercountynv.org 

    

Commissioner Michael Chopp 635-2885 mchopp@landercountynv.org 

    

Commissioner Dee Helming 964-2447 dhelming@landercountynv.org 
    

Assessor Lura Duvall 635-2610 assessor@landercountynv.org 
    

Clerk Molly Gonzalez 635-5738 
landercountyclerk@gmail.com 

    

District Attorney William Schaeffer 635-5195 da@landercountynv.org 
    

Recorder Alexis Reiva 635-5173 recorder@landercountynv.org 
    

Sheriff Ron Unger 635-1100 sheriffunger@landerso.org 
    

Treasurer Jusdivia Johnson 635-5127 treasurer@landercountynv.org 
    

County Manager Bert Ramos 635-2885 bramos@landercountynv.org 
    

Building Colt Nelson 635-2860 building@landercountynv.org 
    

Fiscal Officer Laken Sullivan 635-2573 lsullivan@landercountynv.org 
    

Human Resources Elizabeth Macdonald 635-2885 emacdonald@landercountynv.org 

    

Planning Coordinator Shelby Knopp 635-2860 planning@landercountynv.org 
    

Public Works Don Prince 635-2728 dprince@landercountynv.org 
    

Social Services Tonia Bakker 635-5311 tbakker@landercountynv.org 

    

    

    

    

    

    

Board meets: 2nd & 4th Thursday 

50 State Route 305 15 

http://www.hcnv.us/
mailto:bsparks@landercountynv.org
mailto:wthomas@landercountynv.org
mailto:kancho@landercountynv.org
mailto:mchopp@landercountynv.org
mailto:pwaits@landercountynv.org
mailto:assessor@landercountynv.org
mailto:landercountyclerk@landercountynvelections.gov
mailto:districtattorney@landercountynv.org
mailto:recorder@landercountynv.org
mailto:sheriffunger@landerso.org
mailto:treasurer@landercountynv.org
mailto:bramos@landercountynv.org
mailto:building@landercountynv.org
mailto:lsullivan@landercountynv.org
mailto:emacdonald@landercountynv.org
mailto:planning@landercountynv.org
mailto:dprince@landercountynv.org
mailto:tbakker@landercountynv.org


LINCOLN COUNTY 

PO Box 90 

Pioche, NV 89403 

www.lincolncountynv.org 

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 

Commission Chair Diane Path 962-1919 cooperdianel@yahoo.com 

Commission Vice Chair Janine Woodworth 962-1001 thevault712@gmail.com 

Commissioner Varlin Higbee 962-2004 horanch@lcturbonet.com 

Commissioner Keith Pearson 962-1407 kpearson@lincolncountynv.gov 

Commissioner Mike Reese 962-1643 mreese@lincolncountynv.gov 

Assessor Cyndney Dwire 962-8044 cdwire@lincolnnv.com 

Clerk Lisa Loyd 962-8000 llloyd@lincolnnv.com 

District Attorney Dylan Frehner 962-8073 lcda@lcturebonet.com 

Recorder/Auditor Amy Elmer 962-8076 recorderauditor@co.lincoln.nv.us 

Sheriff Derek Foremaster 962-8080 dforemaster@lcso-nv.org 

Treasurer Shawn Frehner 962-8074 smfrehner@lincolnnv.com 

Administrative Assistant Denice Brown 962-8063 dbrown@lincolnnv.com 

Building/Planning Cory Lytle 962-8071 clytle@lincolnnv.com 

Human Services Amber Box 962-8084 humanservices@lincolnnv.com 

Public Works/Roads Shane Cheeny 962-8087

Board meets:  1st & 3rd Monday 

181 Main Street 16 

http://www.lincolncountynv.org/
mailto:3jcattle@gmail.com
mailto:horanch@lcturbonet.com
mailto:mholt@lincolnnv.com
mailto:lloyd@lincolnnv.com
mailto:lcda@lcturebonet.com
mailto:recorderauditor@co.lincoln.nv.us
mailto:klee@lcso-nv.org
mailto:dbrown@lincolnnv.com
mailto:clytle@lincolnnv.com
mailto:seniornuts@yahoo.com


 

 

 LYON COUNTY    

 27 S. Main Street 

 Yerington, NV 89447 

 www.lyon-county.org 
     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair David Hockaday 771-9848 dhockaday@lyon-county.org 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Wes Henderson 575-4778 whenderson@lyon-county.org 
     

 Commissioner Tammy Hendrix 463-6531 thendrix@lyon-county.org 
     

 Commissioner Scott Keller 577-9048 skeller@lyon-county.org 
     

 Commissioner Robert Jacobson 465-1365 rjacobson@lyon-county.org 
     

 Assessor Troy Villines 463-6520 tvillins@lyon-county.org 
     

 Clerk/Treasurer Staci Lindberg 463-6501 slindberg@lyon-county.org 
     

 District Attorney Steve Rye 463-6511 srye@lyon-county.org 
     

 Recorder Anita Talbot 463-6581 atalbot@lyon-county.org 
     

 Sheriff Brad Pope 463-6600 bpope@lyon-county.org 
     

 County Manager Andrew Haskin 463-6531 ahaskin@lyon-county.org 
     

 Comptroller Joshua Foli 463-6510 comptroller@lyon-county.org 
     
 Emergency Management Taylor Allison 463-6592 tallison@lyon-county.org 
     

 Human Resources Amy Hagan 463-6510 ahagan@lyon-county.org 
     

 Human Services Shayla Holmes 577-5009 sholmes@lyon-county.org 
     

 Road Department Dustin Homan 463-6551 dhoman@lyon-county.org 
     

 Utilities Department David Bruketta 246-6220 dbruketta@lyon-county.org 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board meets:  1st & 3rd Thursday 

 Call for location 463-6533 
17 

http://www.lyon-county.org/
mailto:dhockaday@lyon-county.org
mailto:whenderson@lyon-county.org
mailto:vkeller@lyon-county.org
mailto:jrobertson@lyon-county.org
mailto:tvillins@lyon-county.org
mailto:nbryan@lyon-county.org
mailto:srye@lyon-county.org
mailto:mkassebaum@lyon-county.org
mailto:jpage@lyon-county.org
mailto:comptroller@lyon-county.org
mailto:comptroller@lyon-county.org
mailto:emilavsky@lyon-county.org
mailto:sholmes@lyon-county.org
mailto:dhoman@lyon-county.org
mailto:dbruketta@lyon-county.org


 

 

    MINERAL COUNTY 

 P.O. Box 1450 

 Hawthorne, NV 89415 

 www.mineralcountynv.us 

     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair Larry Grant 945-2446  ccc@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Curtis Schlepp 945-2446  ccb@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Commissioner  945-2446 ccca@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Assessor Kevin Chisum 945-3684 kchisum.@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Clerk/Treasurer Teresa McNally 945-2446 clerk-treasurer@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 District Attorney Jaren Stanton 945-3636 jstanton@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Recorder/Auditor Cindy Nixon 945-3673 recorder@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Sheriff William Ferguson 945-2436 bferguson@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Building Stephanie Flow 945-3671 sflow@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 Comptroller Hillary Womack 945-0706 hwomack@mineralcountynv.org 
     

 

Emergency Management 
Fire 

Chris Lawrence 945-0728 firechief@mineralcountynv.org 

     
 Public Works  945-3897 mpublicdir@att.net 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board meets:  1st & 3rd Wednesday (and following Thursday if necessary) 

 105 S. A Street 
18 

http://www.mineralcountynv.us/
mailto:ccc@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:ccb@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:.@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:recorderauditor@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:radams@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:mfontaine@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:phughes@mineralcountynv.org
mailto:mpublicdir@att.net


 

 

 NYE COUNTY    

 PO Box 153 

 Tonopah, NV 89049 

 www.nyecounty.net 
     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair Debra Strickland 751-7075 dlstrickland@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Ron Boskovich 751-7075 reboskovich@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Commissioner Frank Carbone 751-7075 fgcarbone@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Commissioner Donna Cox 751-7075 coxdonnac@msn.com 
     

 Commissioner Bruce Jabour 277-0333 bjjabour@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Assessor Sheree Stringer 751-7067 sstringer@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Clerk Mark Kampf 482-8134 mkampf@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 District Attorney Brian Kunzi 751-7082 btkunzi@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Recorder Deborah Beatty 751-6346 dbeatty@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Sheriff Joseph McGill 751-7012 jmcgill@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Treasurer Raelyn Powers 751-7040 rcpowers@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 County Manager Tim Sutton 751-4269 tsutton@nyecountynv.gov 
     
 Assistant County Manager Lorina Dellinger 482-7319 ldellinger@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Building Albert Cammarata 751-3773 acammarata@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Comptroller Helen Bae 751-6391 hbae@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Emergency Management Scott Lewis 751-4278 slewis@pahrumpnv.org 
     

 Health & Human Services Karyn Smith 751-7096 ksmith@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Human Resources Elona Goldner 751-6302 egoldner@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Planning Brett Waggoner 751-4249 bwaggoner@nyecountynv.gov 
     

 Public Works Thomas Bolling 751-6270 tlbolling@nyecountynv.gov 

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board Meets: 1st Tuesday - 101 Radar Road - Tonopah 

 3rd Tuesday - 2100 E. Walt Williams Drive - Pahrump 19 

http://www.nyecounty.net/
mailto:dstrickland@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:fgcarbone@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:coxdonnac@msn.com
mailto:bjjabour@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:jprudhont@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:tsutton@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:ldellinger@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:acammarata@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:srrucker@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:slewis@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:ksmith@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:egoldner@co.nye.nv.us
mailto:bwaggoner@co.nye.nv.us


 

 

    PERSHING COUNTY 

 PO Drawer E 

 Lovelock, NV 89419 

 www.pershingcountynv.gov 

     
 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair Larry Rackley 273-2342 lrackley@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Joe Crim Jr. 273-3242 jcrim@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Commissioner Shayla Hudson 273-7123 shudson@pershingcountynv.gov 
     
 Assessor Lauri Basso-Cerini 273-2369 assessor@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Clerk/Treasurer Lacey Donaldson 273-2208 ldonaldson@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 District Attorney Bryce Shields 273-2613 bshields@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Recorder/Auditor Melanie Hamilton 273-2408 mhamilton@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Sheriff Jerry Allen 273-2641 jallen@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Administration Karen Wesner 273-2342 kwesner@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Building/Planning James Evans 273-2700 jevans@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

 Human Services Lacey Donaldson 273-2208 ldonaldson@pershingcountynv.gov 

     
 Roads Dan Hill 273-7334 dhill@pershingcountynv.gov 
     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board meets:  1st & 3rd Wednesday  

 400 Main Street 
20 

http://www.pershingcounty.net/
mailto:lrackley@pershingcounty.net
mailto:assessor@pershingcounty.net
mailto:ldonaldson@pershingcounty.net
mailto:bshields@pershingcounty.net
mailto:rchilds@pershingcounty.net
mailto:jallen@pershingcounty.net
mailto:kwesner@pershingcounty.net
mailto:jevans@pershingcounty.net
mailto:pershingcountyroad@gmail.com


 

 

 STOREY COUNTY    

 26 B Street 

 Virginia City, NV 89440 

 www.storeycounty.org 

     
 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     
 Commission Chair Jay Carmona 847-0968 jcarmona@storeycounty.org 
     

 Commission Vice Chair Clayton Mitchell 742-1270 cmitchell@storeycounty.org 
     

 Commissioner Lance Gilman 412-5999 lgilman@storeycounty.org 
     

 Assessor Jana Seddon 847-0961 jseddon@storeycounty.org 
     

 Clerk/Treasurer Jim Hindle 847-0969 jhindle@storeycounty.org 
     

 District Attorney Anne Langer 847-0964 alanger@storeycounty.org 
     

 Recorder Dru McPherson 847-0967 dmcpherson@storeycounty.org 
     
 Sheriff Mike Cullen 847-0959 sheriff@storeycounty.org 
     

 County Manager Austin Osborne 291-4693 pwhitten@storeycounty.org 
     
 Community Development Pete Renaud 847-0966 building@storeycounty.org 
     

 Community Relations Lara Mather 847-0986 lmather@storeycounty.org 
     

 Comptroller Jennifer McCain 847-1006 jmccain@storeycounty.org 
     
 Emergency Management Lara Mather 847-0986 lmather@storeycounty.org 
     
 Fire District Jeremy Loncar 847-0954 jloncar@storeycounty.org 
     

 Public Works Jason Wierzbicki 847-0958 jwierzbicki@storeycounty.org 

     
     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 Board meets:  1st & 3rd Tuesday  

 26 South B Street 21 

http://www.storeycounty.org/
mailto:jcarmona@storeycounty.org
mailto:cmitchell@storeycounty.org
mailto:lgilman@storeycounty.org
mailto:jseddon@storeycounty.org
mailto:vstephens@storeycounty.org
mailto:alanger@storeycounty.org
mailto:jchapman@storeycounty.org
mailto:sheriff@storeycounty.org
mailto:pwhitten@storeycounty.org
mailto:building@storeycounty.org
mailto:cnevin@storeycounty.org
mailto:hgallagher@storeycounty.org
mailto:lmather@storeycounty.org
mailto:jnevin@storeycounty.org
mailto:jwierzbicki@storeycounty.org


 

 

    WASHOE COUNTY 

 1001 E. Ninth Street 

 Reno, NV 89520 

 www.washoecounty.gov 

     

 OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 
     

 Commission Chair Alexis Hill 447-3017 ahill@washoecounty.gov 
     

 
Commission Vice Chair Jeanne Herman 358-0555 

jherman@washoecounty.gov, 
jeannesland@gmail.com 

     

 Commissioner Clara Andriola 444-5185 candriola@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Commissioner Michael Clark 686.0342 meclark@washoecountynv.gov 
     

 Commissioner Mariluz Garcia 444-0628 mcgarcia@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Assessor Chris Sarman 328-2262 csarman@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Clerk Jan Galassini 784-7270 jgalassini@washoecounty.gov 
     

 District Attorney Christopher Hicks 328-3220 chicks@da.washoecounty.gov 
     

 Public Administrator Nicole Klitzke 861-4012 nklitzke@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Recorder Kalie Work 328-3664 kwork@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Sheriff Darin Balaam 328-3010 dbalaam@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Treasurer Justin Taylor 328-2548 jtaylor@washoecounty.gov 
     

 County Manager Eric Brown 328-2000 epricebrown@washoecounty.gov 
     
 Assistant County Manager Kate Thomas 328-2008 kathomas@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Assistant County Manager Dave Solaro 328-3624 dsolaro@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Building/Planning Kelly Mullin 328-3619 kmullin@washoecounty.gov 
     

 CFO Abigail Yacoben 325-8243 ayacoben@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Emergency Management Kelly Echeverria 337-5898 kecheverria@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Human Resources Patricia Hurley 328-2087 phurley@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Human Services Ryan Gustafson 337-4401 rgustafson@washoecounty.gov 
     

 Emergency Management Kelly Echevarria 337-5898 kechevarria@washoecounty.gov 
     

 

Public Works                    
Community Services 

Eric Crump 328-3600 ecrump@washoecounty.gov 

 Board meets:  2nd, 3rd & 4th Tuesday 

 1001 E. Ninth Street 22 

http://www.washoecounty.us/
mailto:ahill@washoecounty.us
mailto:jherman@washoecounty.us
mailto:vhartung@washoecounty.us
mailto:meclark@washoecounty.us
mailto:nparent@washoecounty.us
mailto:chicks@da.washoecounty.us
mailto:lwork@washoecounty.us
mailto:dbalaam@washoecounty.us
mailto:epricebrown@washoecounty.us
mailto:kthomas@washoecounty.us
mailto:dsolaro@washoecounty.us
mailto:mhauenstein@washoecounty.us
mailto:comptroller@washoecounty.us
mailto:phurley@washoecounty.us
mailto:ahowell@washoecounty.us
mailto:kechevarria@washoecounty.us
mailto:dsmith@washoecounty.us


WHITE PINE COUNTY 

1786 Great Basin Blvd. Ste. 3 

Ely, NV 89301 

www.whitepinecounty.net 

OFFICE OFFICIAL PHONE EMAIL 

Commission Chair Laurie Carson 293-6562 lcarson@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Commission Vice Chair Janet VanCamp 293-6562 jvancamp@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Commissioner Shane Bybee 293-6562 sbybee@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Commissioner Richard Howe 293-6562 rhowe@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Commissioner Hank Vogler 293-6562 hvogler@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Assessor Burton Hilton 293-6542 bhilton@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Clerk Nichole Baldwin 293-6509 wpclerk@whitepinecountynv.gov 

District Attorney James S. Beecher 293-6565 DAOffice@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Recorder Chrissie Shady 293-6507 cshady@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Sheriff Scott Henriod 289-8808 shenriod@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Treasurer Catherine Bakaric 293-6506 cbakaric@whitepinecountynv.gov 

County Manager Michael Wheable 293-6596 wheable@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Building (Admin.) Jennifer Drew-Lesher 289-6500 buildingofficial@cityofelynv.gov 

Emergency      Michael Dalton 293-6500 mdalton@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Finance Director Kathy Workman 293-6530 kworkman@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Fire Protection District Courtland Hall 293-0099 chall@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Public Works Courtney Thornal 293-6552 cthornal@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Roads Martin Troutt 293-6551 mtroutt@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Social Services Desiree Barnson 293-6528 dbarnson@whitepinecountynv.gov 

Board meets:  2nd & 4th Wednesday 

 950 Campton St. 23 

http://www.whitepinecounty.net/
mailto:sstork@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:sbybee@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:rhowe@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:bhilton@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:wpclerk@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:DAOffice@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:mriverasindelar@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:shenriod@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:cbakaric@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:efrances@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:tbunch@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:bcalderwood@whitepinecountynv.gov
mailto:dbarnson@whitepinecountynv.gov


 

 

NACO appreciates the service of all County Commissioners and proudly recognizes these 

       

1946 Hugh Schamberger - Ormsby County  1994 Dave Pumphry - Douglas County   

1950 Charles Cavanaugh - Nye County  1995 Jim Regan - Churchill County   

1951 Fred Baldini - Lander County  1996 LeRoy Etchegaray - Eureka County   

1952 W.J. Hemingway - White Pine County  1997 Wayne Cameron - White Pine County   

1953 Cecil Campbell - Pershing County  1998 Roberta Skelton - Elko County   

1954 Ray Capurro - Washoe County  1999 Yvonne Atkinson-Gates - Clark County   

1955 George Ogilvie - Elko County  2000 Myrna Williams - Clark County   

1956 Martin Duffy - Esmeralda County  2001 Ray Masayko - Carson City   

1957 Martin Settlemeyer - Douglas County  2002 LeRoy Goodman - Lyon County   

1958 Ed Lauritzen - Lander County  2003 Roger Mancebo - Pershing County   

1959 Henry Eddy - Mineral County  2004 John H. Milton III - Humboldt County   

1960 Tony Farias - Lyon County  2005 Joni Eastly - Nye County   

1961 Frank Bengochea - Humboldt County  2006 Norman Frey - Churchill County   

1962 Bill Bell - Churchill County  2007 John Ellison - Elko County   

  1963/1964 J.C. McKenzie - Washoe County  2008 Jim Baushke - Douglas County   

1965 William Goni - Carson City  2009 Bonnie Weber - Washoe County   

1966 Don Moody - Mineral County  2010 Robin Williamson - Carson City   

1967 Bill Briare - Clark County  2011 Doug Johnson - Douglas County   

1968 Ed Murphy - Elko County  2012 Jerrie Tipton - Mineral County   

1969 Warren Hursh - Churchill County  2013 Nancy Boland - Esmeralda County   

1970 Chuck Meneley - Douglas County  2014 Pat Irwin - Pershing County   

1971 Ed Higbee - Lincoln County  2015 Lorinda Wichman - Nye County   

1972 Tom Rosevear - White Pine County  2016 Laurie Carson - White Pine County   

1973 Bob Griffin - Lyon County  2017 Kevin Phillips - Lincoln County   

1974 Robert Broadbent - Clark County  2018 Lawrence Weekly - Clark County   

1975 Pete Bengochea - Humboldt County  2019 Patsy Waits - Lander County   

1976 Eyer Boies - Elko County  2020 Jim French, Humboldt County   

1977 Robert Rusk - Washoe County  2021 Marilyn Kirkpatrick, Clark County   

1978 Henry Bland - Storey County  2022 Bob Lucey, Washoe County   

1979 Harold Dayton - Douglas County  2023 Varlin Higbee, Lincoln County   

1980 Jack Petitti - Clark County      

1981 Kenneth Kjer - Douglas County      

1982 Alan Beck - Humboldt County      

1983 Thalia Dondero - Clark County      

1984 Belie Williams - Washoe County      

1985 Manny Cortez - Clark County      

1986 Mark Schrader - Storey County      

1987 Karen Hayes - Clark County      

1988 Tebeau Piquet - Humboldt County      

1989 Gene McDowell - Washoe County      

1990 Jay Bingham - Clark County      

1991 Ernie Hall - Elko county      

1992 John Lampros - White Pine County      

1993 Larry Beck - Washoe County      

       

       
24 



 

 

 

 

GOVERNOR - Joseph Lombardo 
Carson City - P: 684-5670   

Las Vegas - P: 486-2500  

http://gov.state.nv.us/contactx.htm 

 

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR - Stavros Anthony 
Carson City - P: 684-7111  

Las Vegas - P: 486-2400  

ltgov@ltgov.nv.gov 

 

SECRETARY OF STATE - Francisco “Cisco” Aguilar 
Carson City - P: 684-5708  

Las Vegas - P: 486-2440  

sosexec@sos.nv.gov 

 

TREASURER - Zach Conine 
Carson City - P: 684-5600  
Las Vegas - P: 486-2488  

statetreasurer@nevadatreasurer.gov 

 

ATTORNEY GENERAL - Aaron Ford 
Carson City - P: 684-1100  
Las Vegas - P: 486-3420  

AgInfo@ag.nv.gov  

 

CONTROLLER - Andy Matthews 
Carson City - P: 684-5750  
Las Vegas - P: 486-3895   
amatthews@sco.nv.gov 

STATE ELECTED OFFICIALS 

25 

mailto:AgInfo@ag.nv.gov


NEVADA SENATE 

Carrie Ann Buck, R - District 5 Carrie.Buck@sen.state.nv.us 

Nicole Cannizzaro, D - District 6 Nicole.Cannizzaro@sen.state.nv.us 

Richard “Skip” Daly, D - District 13 Skip.Daly@sen.state.nv.us 

Fabian Donate, D - District 10 Fabian.Donate@sen.state.nv.us 

Marilyn Dondero Loop, D - District 8 Marilyn.DonderoLoop@sen.state.nv.us 

Edgar Flores, D - District 2 Edgar.Flores@sen.state.nv.us 

Pete Goicoechea, R - District 19 Pete.Goicoechea@sen.state.nv.us 

Ira Hansen, R - District 14 Ira.Hansen@sen.state.nv.us 

Dallas Harris, D - District 11 Dallas.Harris@sen.state.nv.us 

Lisa Krasner, R - District 16 Lisa.Krasner@sen.state.nv.us 

Roberta Lange, D - District 7 Roberta.Lange@sen.state.nv.us 

Dina Neal, D - District 4 Dina.Neal@sen.state.nv.us 

Rochelle T. Nguyen, D - District 3 Rochelle.Nguyen@sen.state.nv.us 

James Ohrenschall, D - District 21 James.Ohrenschall@sen.state.nv.us 

Julie Pazina, D - District 12 Julie.Pazina@sen.state.nv.us 

Melanie Scheible, D - District 9 Melanie.Scheible@sen.state.nv.us 

Heidi Seevers Gansert, R - District 15 Heidi.Gansert@sen.state.nv.us 

Pat Spearman, D - District 1 Pat.Spearman@sen.state.nv.us 

Jeff Stone, R - District 20 Jeff.Stone@sen.state.nv.us 

Robin Titus, R - District 17 Robin.Titus@sen.state.nv.us 

 Vacant - District 18 

26 



Natha C. Anderson, D - District 30 
Natha.Anderson@asm.state.nv.us 

Heidi Kasama, R - District 2 
Heidi.Kasama@lcb.state.nv.us 

Shea Backus, D - District 37 
Shea.Backus@asm.state.nv.us 

Gregory Koenig, R - District 38 
Gregory.Koenig@lcb.state.nv.us 

Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod, D - District 34 
Shannon.BilbrayAxelrod@asm.state.nv.us 

Selena La Rue Hatch, D - District 25 
Selena.La.Rue.Hatch@lcb.state.nv.us 

Tracy Brown-May, D - District 42 
Tracy.BrownMay@asm.state.nv.us 

Elaine Marzola, D - District 21 
Elaine.Marzola@asm.state.nv.us 

Max Carter, D - District 12 
Max.Carter@asm.state.nv.us 

Richard McArthur, R - District 4 
Richard.McArthur@asm.state.nv.us 

Lesley E. Cohen, D - District 29 
Lesley.Cohen@asm.state.nv.us 

Brittney Miller, D - District 5 
Brittney.Miller@asm.state.nv.us 

Venicia Considine, D - District 18 
Venicia.Considine@asm.state.nv.us 

Daniele Monroe-Moreno, D - District 1 
Daniele.MonroeMoreno@asm.state.nv.us 

Rich DeLong, R - District 26 
Rich.Delong@asm.state.nv.us 

Erica Mosca, D - District 14 
Erica.Mosca@asm.state.nv.us 

Jill Dickman, R - District 31 
Jill.Dickman@asm.state.nv.us 

Duy Nguyen, R - District 8 
Duy.Nguyen@asm.state.nv.us 

Reuben D’Silva, D - District 28 
Reuben.Dsilva@asm.state.nv.us 

Philip (P.K.) O’Neill, R - District 40 
PK.Oneill@asm.state.nv.us 

Bea Duran, D - District 11 
Bea.Duran@asm.state.nv.us 

David Orentlicher, D - District 20 
David.Orentlicher@asm.state.nv.us 

Danielle Gallant, R - District 23 
Danielle.Gallant@asm.state.nv.us 

Sarah Peters, D - District 24 
Sarah.Peters@asm.state.nv.us 

Cecelia Gonzalez, D - District 16 
Cecelia.Gonzalez@asm.state.nv.us 

Shondra Summers-Armstrong, D - District 6 
Shondra.Armstrong@asm.state.nv.us 

Michelle Gorelow, D - District 35 
Michelle.Gorelow@asm.state.nv.us 

Angie Taylor, D - District 27 
Angie.Taylor@asm.state.nv.us 

Ken Gray, R - District 39 
Ken.Gray@asm.state.nv.us 

Clara (Claire) Thomas, D - District 17 
Clara.Thomas@asm.state.nv.us 

Bert Gurr, R - District 33 
Bert.Gurr@asm.state.nv.us 

Selena Torres, D - District 3 
Selena.Torres@asm.state.nv.us 

Gregory T. Hafen II, R - District 36 
Gregory.Hafen@asm.state.nv.us 

Howard Watts, D - District 15 
Howard.Watts@asm.state.nv.us 

Alexis Hansen, R - District 32 
Alexis.Hansen@asm.state.nv.us 

Steve Yeager, D - District 9 
Steve.Yeager@asm.state.nv.us 

Melissa Hardy, R - District 22 
Melissa.Hardy@asm.state.nv.us 

Toby Yurek, R - District 19 
Toby.Yurek@asm.state.nv.us 

Brian Hibbetts, R - District 13 
Brian.Hibbetts@asm.state.nv.us Vacant - District 7 

Sandra Jauregui, D - District 41 
Sandra.Jauregui@asm.state.nv.us Vacant - District 10 

NEVADA  ASSEMBLY 

27 



          Administration 

Brenda Erdoes, Director 

Roger Wilkerson, Chief 

P: 684-6800 

admin@lcb.state.nv.us 

         Fiscal Analysis 
Wayne Thorley, Senate Analyst 

Sarah Coffman, Assembly Analyst 

P: 684-6821 

fiscal@lcb.state.nv.us 

          Legislative Staff 
Brendan Bucy, Secretary of the Senate 

P: 684-1400 

Brendan.busy@sen.state.nv.us 

Susan Furlong, Chief Clerk of the 

Assembly 

P: 684-8555 

Susan.furlong@asm.state.nv.us 

         Audit 

Daniel Crossman, Legislative Auditor 

P: 684-6815 

audit@lcb.state.nv.us 

         Legal 
Kevin L. Powers, General Counsel 

Bryan Fernley, Legislative Counsel 

P: 684-6830 

legal@lcb.state.nv.us 

Research 
Nicholas C. Anthony Director 

P: 684-6825 

research@lcb.state.nv.us 

Stephanie Heyroth Wilcox, 

Legislative Librarian 

P:684-6827 

library@lcb.state.nv.us 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL BUREAU 

28 



U.S. SENATOR—Catherine Cortez Masto (D) 
Washington D.C. - P: 202-224-3542 

Las Vegas - P: 388-5020  
Reno - P: 686-5750  

Rural - 775-225-1457 

U.S. SENATOR - Jacky Rosen (D) 
Washington D.C. - P: 202-224-6244 

Las Vegas - P: 388-6605  

U.S. CONGRESSWOMAN - Dina Titus (D) 
Nevada’s First Congressional District 
Washington D.C. - P: 202-225-5965 

Las Vegas - P: 220-9823 

U.S. CONGRESSMAN - Mark Amodei (R) 
Nevada’s Second Congressional District 

Washington D.C. - P: 202-225-6155  
Reno - P: 686-5760  
Elko - P: 777-7705  

U.S. CONGRESSWOMAN—Susie Lee (D) 
Nevada’s Third Congressional District 

Washington D.C. - P: 202-225-3252  
Las Vegas - P: 963-9336 

U.S. CONGRESSMAN - Steven Horsford (D) 
Nevada’s Fourth Congressional District 

Washington D.C. - P: 202-225-9894  

FEDERAL ELECTED OFFICIALS 

29 



P: 202-393-6226  
www.naco.org 

PRESIDENT—Commissioner, Mary Jo McGuire, Ramsey County Mn. 

1st VICE PRESIDENT—Supervisor, James Gore, Sonoma County Ca. 

 2nd VICE PRESIDENT— Judge, JD Clark, Wise County Tx. 

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT—County Executive, Denise Winfrey, Will County Il.. 

WEST REGION—Commissioner Joe Briggs, Cascade County Mt. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR—Matthew Chase 

FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION—Bill Jaisen, Executive Chairman 

NEVADA APPOINTMENTS TO NACo COMMITTIES 

Agriculture & Rural Affairs Committee— Douglas County Commissioner, Mark Gardner  

Energy, Environment & Land Use Steering Committee—NACO Executive Director, Vinson Guthreau 

Large Urban Caucus—Clark County Commissioner, Marilyn Kirkpatrick 

Public Lands Steering Committee— Elko County Commissioner, Rex Steninger; Lincoln County Commissioner, Varlin  

          Higbee; Lyon County Commissioner, Wes Henderson; Nye County Commissioner, 

Debra Strickland; Washoe County Commissioner, Jeanne Herman;  

NACO Natural Resources Manager, Jacob Brinkerhoff 

Rural Action Caucus—Lincoln County Commissioner, Varlin Higbee; Washoe County Commissioner, Jeanne Herman 

Telecommunications & Technology Committee—Clark County Commissioner, Marilyn Kirkpatrick 

Transportation Steering Committee—Washoe County Commissioner Alexis Hill; NACO Executive Director, Vinson      

    Guthreau 

NACO APPOINTMENTS TO NEVADA STATUTORY BOARDS 
Board for the Fund for Hospital Care to Indigent Persons (NRS 428.195) - Carson City Supervisor, Stacey Giomi;  Clark County 

Commissioner, William McCurdy II; Elko County Commissioner, Delmo Andreozzi; White Pine County Commissioner, 

Laurie Carson; Lyon County Human Services Director and Public Guardian,  Shayla Holmes 

Commission on Off-Highway Vehicles (NRS 490.067) - Carson City Supervisor, Maurice White 

Committee on Local Government Finance (NRS 354.105) - Clark County CFO, Jessica Colvin; Humboldt County Comptroller, Gina 

Rackley; Washoe County CFO, Abigail Yacoben 

Health & Human Services Grants Management Advisory Committee (NRS 232.383) - Lyon County Human Services Administrator 

and Public Guardian,  Shayla Holmes 

Nevada Board on Indigent Defense Services (NRS 180.) - Dave Mendiola, Humboldt County Manager; Pershing County 

Commissioner, Joe Crim Jr., Nye County Assistant Manager, Lorina Dellinger;  Joni Eastley 

Nevada Commission on Nuclear Projects (NRS 459.0091) - Clark County Commissioner, Ross Miller 

Nevada Rural Housing Authority (NRS 315.977) - Joni Eastley, Roger Mancebo, Zethka Fountas 

State Land Use Planning Council (NRS 321.740 ) - Jacob Brinkerhoff, NACO Natural Resources Manager 

NATIONAL & STATE REPRESENTATION 

30 



- 82nd Session (2023) 

Senate Bill No. 118–Committee on 
Health and Human Services 

CHAPTER.......... 

AN ACT relating to public health; authorizing the creation of a 
health district by certain counties which are not physically 
adjacent; making an appropriation; and providing other 
matters properly relating thereto. 

Legislative Counsel’s Digest: 
Existing law creates a health district in any county whose population is 700,000 

or more (currently Clark County), which has jurisdiction over all public health 
matters in the health district. (NRS 439.361, 439.362, 439.366) Existing law 
authorizes the creation of a health district with similar jurisdiction in counties 
whose population is less than 700,000 (currently all counties other than Clark 
County), subject to approval by the State Board of Health, by affirmative vote of: 
(1) the boards of county commissioners of two or more adjacent counties; (2) the
governing bodies of two or more cities or towns within any county; or (3) the board
of county commissioners and the governing body or bodies of any incorporated city
or cities, town or towns, in such a county. (NRS 439.370) Sections 7 and 8 of this
bill remove the requirement that two counties must be physically adjacent in order
to create a health district.

Section 9.2 of this bill makes an appropriation to the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health of the Department of Health and Human Services for allocation 
to specified entities for the improvement of public health. Section 9.2 requires each 
such entity to submit a report to the Interim Finance Committee at the end of Fiscal 
Year 2024-2025 and Fiscal Year 2025-2026, respectively, concerning the use of the 
allocated money.  

EXPLANATION – Matter in bolded italics is new; matter between brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN 
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 

Sections 1-6.  (Deleted by amendment.) 
Sec. 7.  NRS 439.370 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
439.370  By affirmative vote of: 
1. The boards of county commissioners of two or more

[adjacent] counties; 
2. The governing bodies of two or more cities or towns within

any county; or 
3. The board of county commissioners and the governing body

or bodies of any incorporated city or cities, town or towns, in such 
county, 
 and with the approval of the State Board of Health, there may be
created a health district with a health department consisting of a
district health officer and a district board of health.

Agenda Item 16



– 2 –

- 82nd Session (2023) 

Sec. 8.  NRS 439.383 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 439.383  When two or more [adjacent] counties establish a 
district board of health, all county boards of health in such district 
shall thereupon be abolished. 

Secs. 8.5 and 9.  (Deleted by amendment.) 
Sec. 9.2.  1.  There is hereby appropriated from the State 

General Fund to the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the 
Department of Health and Human Services the sum of $15,000,000 
for allocation pursuant to subsection 2 for the improvement of the 
public health. 

2. On or before August 1, 2024, the Division of Public and
Behavioral Health shall allocate the money appropriated by 
subsection 1 to the following entities based on the following 
prescribed percentages of the total appropriated money:  

(a) The Central Nevada Health District, 1.3 percent;
(b) The Washoe County Health District, 16 percent;
(c) The Southern Nevada Health District, 73 percent; and
(d) The Division of Public and Behavioral Health or a designee

of the Division, 9.7 percent. 
3. An entity to which money is allocated pursuant to subsection

2 shall: 
(a) Evaluate the public health needs of residents of the area

under the jurisdiction of the entity; 
(b) Determine the level of priority of the public health needs

identified pursuant to paragraph (a); 
(c) Expend the allocated money in accordance with the levels of

priority identified pursuant to paragraph (b); and 
(d) Not later than 90 days after the end of Fiscal Year 2024-

2025 and 2025-2026, respectively: 
(1) Prepare a report which must include, without limitation:

(I) A description of the process used by the entity
pursuant to paragraph (a) to evaluate the public health needs of 
residents of the area under the jurisdiction of the entity and the 
public health needs identified through that process; 

(II) A description of the process used by the entity
pursuant to paragraph (b) to determine the level of priority of the 
public health needs identified pursuant to paragraph (a) and the 
levels of priority assigned to those public health needs through that 
process;  

(III) A description of each expenditure of the allocated
money made by the entity pursuant to paragraph (c); and 

(IV) The unexpended balance of the allocated money at
the end of the fiscal year. 



– 3 –

- 82nd Session (2023) 

(2) Submit the report to the Director of the Legislative
Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the Interim Finance Committee. 

4. An entity to which money is allocated pursuant to subsection
2 shall not use the money to replace or supplant money available 
from other sources. 

5. The portion of any money remaining at the end of Fiscal
Year 2024-2025 from an allocation of the money appropriated by 
subsection 1 that is not committed for expenditure by June 30, 2025, 
must be carried forward to Fiscal Year 2025-2026 to be used for the 
same purpose. Any remaining balance of the allocated money 
carried forward to Fiscal Year 2025-2026 must not be committed for 
expenditure after June 30, 2026, and must be reverted to the State 
General Fund on or before September 18, 2026. 

Sec. 9.5.  (Deleted by amendment.) 
 Sec. 10.  1.  This section and sections 1 to 9, inclusive, and 
9.5 of this act become effective upon passage and approval. 

2. Section 9.2 of this act becomes effective on July 1, 2024.

20 ~~~~~ 23



SB118 - Public Health Infrastructure and Funding 

SB118 amended state law to allow non-adjacent counties to form health districts (such as the newly-created 
Central Nevada Health District) and provided a $15,000,000 allocation from the State General Fund for the 
improvement of public health. 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) is the health jurisdiction for counties not in a health 
district. For counties under this model, DPBH is partnering with County Health Officers and local governments 
to determine local public health needs and priorities. DPBH will disburse funds through grant agreements on 
July 1, 2024, and/or, as requested by counties, DPBH can utilize the funds to enhance/expand their local 
delivery of a current program. 

Under the provisions of SB118, the following is required of health jurisdictions to determine spending: 
• Conduct an evaluation of public health needs
• Prioritize public health needs based on evaluation
• Expend funds based on priority
• Report back on use of funds
• No replacing or supplanting already available public health funding

Previously conducted local Community Health Needs Assessments can be used to determine priority areas. 
Additionally, NACO/UNR Extension’s Foundational Public Health Services Assessment (ongoing) can be used 
as the evaluation and prioritization process for each county as desired.  

NACO’s Public Health Coordinator is available to support all counties with SB118 implementation planning and 

coordination with DPBH. Please reach out to: Amy Hyne-Sutherland, ahynesutherland@nvnaco.org, 775-883-7867 

By Jurisdiction* Dollar Allocation** 

Central Nevada Health District $ 195,000.00 

Northern Nevada Public Health $ 2,400,000.00 

Southern Nevada Health District $ 10,950,000.00 

Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) $ 1,455,000.00 

SB118 Distribution Total $ 15,000,000.00 

DPBH Breakdown by County 

County/City Dollar Allocation** 

Carson City $353,745.99  

Douglas County $285,169.16  

Elko County $300,423.51  

Esmeralda County $7,256.29  

Humboldt County $105,187.25  

Lander County $35,778.37  

Lincoln County $25,019.70  

Lyon County $35,778.37  

Nye County $226,002.95  

Storey County $23,471.70  

White Pine County $57,166.70  

DPBH/Nevada Total $ 1,455,000.00 

Funds can be used to support 
specific local programs and/or 

regional public health 
improvement efforts 

*For counties within a health
district, the funding is
distributed through the health
district

**Allocations based on 
population size utilizing the 
Nevada State Demographer - 
2022 Governor's Certified Series: 
Population of Nevada's Counties 
and Incorporated Cities 

mailto:ahynesutherland@nvnaco.org
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf
https://tax.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/taxnvgov/Content/TaxLibrary/FINAL%20Pop%20Nevada%20Counties%20Incorp%20Cities%20Unincorp%20Towns%202022(1).pdf


NEVADA ASSOCATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

TO: NACO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: VINSON GUTHREAU, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT NACO VEHICLE 

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2024 

Currently, the Nevada Association of Counties (NACO) owns a 2006 Jeep.  Given the age 
and condition of this NACO asset, Association Leadership is seeking authority to purchase 
a replacement vehicle.  

The ownership of a NACO vehicle allows for safe and efficient travel for staff to engage 
with NACO member counties, through presentations to county leadership and 
Commissioners.  Further, this vehicle is utilized for travel for the NACO Annual 
Conference and various additional Association related Business.  

The Executive Director is seeking the authority, through action by the NACO Board of 
Directors to approve the purchase of a replacement vehicle, utilizing the State Purchasing 
Website portal, not to exceed $70,000.00. 

Agenda Item 17



NOTIFICATION OF NACO OFFICE AND EMPLOYMENT POLICY 

TO: NACO STAFF  

FROM: VINSON GUTHREAU, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: NACO APPROVED POLICY REGARDING MAINTING OF RECEIPTS AND 
PROOF OF PURCHASE 

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2024 

CC: TO BE INCLUDED IN NACO POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

This policy applies to all current and future employees of the Nevada Association of 
Counties (NACO). All employees will be required to sign an acknowledgement of the policy 
and the Board Approved policy will be included as part of the NACO Policy and 
Procedures Manual.   

NACO is funded, in part, with member county dues, which are public monies.  During all 
Association related business, including travel and expenses, which are needed to adhere to 
and deliver NACO’s mission to serve our members, employees should be cognizant of the 
public trust during such duties.  

As such, the following receipt and proof of purchase policy will be expected of all NACO 
staff, including the NACO Executive Director.  In general, receipts and proof of purchase 
should be maintained and included in any expense reimbursement and / or NACO credit 
card usage.   

Additionally, said receipts and/or proof of purchase for any item, or cost, exceeding $25, 
this referenced documentation will be required.  If such proof cannot be furnished the 
expense will become the responsibility of the purchasing employee.   

Acknowledgement: 

______________________________ 

Date: 

______________________________ 

Agenda Item 18


	NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment must include your f...
	The public may also join the meeting via telephone and provide verbal public comment during designated times by calling: (669) 900-9128 Meeting ID: 832 8946 6638 Passcode: 921863
	AGENDA
	Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	Adjournment.
	NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703
	Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801
	NACO BOD Minutes December 2023.pdf
	ATTENDANCE: President Higbee, President Elect Giomi, Past President Kirkpatrick, Douglas County Commissioner Gardner, Elko County Commissioner Andreozzi, Humboldt County Commissioner Tipton, Lincoln County Commissioner Reese, Lyon County Commissioner ...
	The meeting was called to order at 9:33 a.m.
	The meeting was adjourned at 11:21 a.m.

	NACO BOD Minutes December 2023.pdf
	ATTENDANCE: President Higbee, President Elect Giomi, Past President Kirkpatrick, Douglas County Commissioner Gardner, Elko County Commissioner Andreozzi, Humboldt County Commissioner Tipton, Lincoln County Commissioner Reese, Lyon County Commissioner ...
	The meeting was called to order at 9:33 a.m.
	The meeting was adjourned at 11:21 a.m.

	NACO Financials 10-31-23.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board

	NACO Financials 11-30-23.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board

	NACO Financials 12-31-23.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board

	ADP6E5C.tmp
	TO:
	NACO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	VINSON GUTHREAU, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT NACO VEHICLE

	DATE:
	JANUARY 26, 2024


	ADPED91.tmp
	TO:
	NACO STAFF 

	FROM:
	VINSON GUTHREAU, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

	SUBJECT:
	NACO APPROVED POLICY REGARDING MAINTING OF RECEIPTS AND PROOF OF PURCHASE

	DATE:
	JANUARY 26, 2024

	CC:
	TO BE INCLUDED IN NACO POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL





